
1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education 

"Building a Bright Future for All Learners" 
 

Regular Meeting 
March 20, 2024 
6:00 p.m. Closed Session 
7:00 p.m. Open Session 

Galt City Hall Chamber 
380 Civic Drive, Galt, CA 95632 

 
To join the webinar remotely: 

https://galt-k12-ca.zoom.us/j/86407492532 
Or One tap mobile : 

    +16694449171,,86407492532# US 
    +16699006833,,86407492532# US (San Jose) 

Webinar ID: 864 0749 2532 
Or Telephone:     
408-638-0968 

 

AGENDA 
Anyone may comment publicly on any item within the Board's subject matter jurisdiction to the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Board 
of Education. However, the Board may not take action on any item not on this Board meeting agenda except as authorized by Government Code 
section 54954.2. 
− Complete a public comment form indicating the item you want to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
− Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-agenda item.  
− Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board meeting will be posted on the GJUESD website with 

the agenda. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 
− The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With Board consent, the president may increase or decrease 

the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.  
 
Board of Education Meetings are recorded. 

 
A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: Galt City Hall Conference Room 
   
B. Announce items to be discussed in Closed Session, Adjourn to Closed Session  
    
 1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Unrepresented Employees 

   
C. Adjourn Closed Session, Call Meeting to Order, Flag Salute, Announce Action Taken in Closed 

Session 
   
D. Board Meeting Protocol 
  
E. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval. 
  

mailto:superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us


2 
 

F. Reports  
  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. District Reading Assessments (DRA) 
 2. Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) Data 
 3. Acceleration Blocks [small-group, targeted instruction focused on a specific skill(s)] 
 4. Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative (CYBHI) Evidence-based Practices and Community-

Defined Evidence Practices Grant Program 
   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. Community Bond Measure Survey  
    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. School Calendars 
    
G. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.478 Consent Calendar  
  a. Approval of the Agenda 

At a regular meeting, the Board may act upon an item of business not appearing on the posted agenda 
if, first, the Board publicly identifies the item, and second, one or more of the following occurs: 
1) The Board, by a majority vote of the entire Board, decides that an emergency (as defined in 

Government Code section 54956.5) exists or 
2) Upon a decision by a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if less than two-thirds of the Board 

members are present, a unanimous vote of those present, the Board decides that there is a need 
to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the District after 
the agenda was posted; or  

3) The item was posted on the agenda of a prior meeting of the Board occurring not more than five 
calendar days before the date of this meeting, and at the preceding meeting, the item was 
continued to this meeting. 

MOTION 

     
  b. Minutes  
    February 21, 2024 Regular Board Meeting  
     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 24466327-24466340; 24466960-
24467005;24467961-24468013;24469537-24469597; 24471087-
24471138 

 Payroll Warrants: 2/16/24, 2/29/24, 3/8/24 

 

     
  d. Personnel  
    Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 
 Job Shares 

 

     
  e. Donations  
     
  f. Catapult Emergency Management System Quote/Contract  
     
  g. Aya Healthcare Master Contract for Non Public Schools and Agencies  



3 
 

     
 232.479 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration MOTION 
    
 232.480 Board Consideration of Approval of Second Interim Budget Report For Fiscal 

Year 2023-24 
MOTION 

    
 232.481 Board Consideration of Approval of GJUESD 2023-24 Transportation Plan MOTION 
    
 232.482 Board Consideration of Approval of Resolution No. 15 Calling the Presidential 

General Election [Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Request to 
Consolidate the Regularly Scheduled Presidential Election on November 5, 
2024, and Nomination of Candidates for the Governing Body] 

MOTION 

    
 232.483 Board Consideration of Approval of Tentative Agreement Between the 

California School Employees Association and its Galt Chapter #362 (CSEA) 
and the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Regarding: 

• Article IX: Leaves 
• Article XIII: Layoff & Re-employment 
• Article XVIII: Professional Growth Program 
• Article XIX: Fringe Benefits 
• Article XX: Wages 

MOTION 

    
 232.484 Board Consideration of Approval of Agreement Between the Galt Joint Union 

Elementary School District and Unrepresented Employees Regarding 
Compensation 

MOTION 

    
 232.485 Board Consideration of Approval of 2023-24 Title 1 Notification Authorization 

of Schoolwide Program Waiver for Fairsite Elementary 
MOTION 

    
 232.486 First Reading of the following Board Policies (BP) and Administrative 

Regulations (AR) 
1. BP/AR 1250 Visitors/Outsiders 
2. BP 1313 Civility 
3. BP/AR 3515.2 Disruptions 
4. BP/AR 4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees 

FIRST 
READING 

    
H. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval.  
   
I. Pending Agenda Items  
 1. School Resource Officer (SRO) Report  
    
J. Adjournment  
    
    

The next regular meeting of the GJUESD Board of Education: April 17, 2024 
  

 
 



4 
 

Board agenda materials are available for review at the address below. Individuals who require disability-related 
accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, to participate in the Board meeting should 

contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 
 

 Lois Yount, District Superintendent 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 
superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 

 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      March 20, 2024 Agenda Item:  Closed Session 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 
  

 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 
Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Non-Represented Employees 

  
  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Revised December 21, 2023 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

BOARD MEETING PROTOCOL 
 
 
 
 
SESSION INTRODUCTION 

1. The meeting is being recorded. 
2. The meeting is open to the public. 
3. The meeting is being broadcast live through Zoom teleconference. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Public comments are three minutes per agenda item. 
2. The Board shall limit the total time for public comment for each agenda item to 20 

minutes. 
3. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease the time allowed for 

public comment. 
4. To make a public comment in person, complete a public comment form indicating the 

item you would like to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
 

EMAIL PUBLIC COMMENT 
1. Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board 

meeting will be posted to the GJUESD website with the agenda. 
2. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 

 
BOARD VOTE AND CONNECTIVITY 

1. Each motion will be followed by a roll call vote for action items. 
2. Should a board member attend the meeting remotely and lose connectivity by 

teleconference or phone, the meeting will be delayed five minutes. 
 
 
REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS SHALL BE ADJOURNED BY 10:30 P.M. 

mailto:superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us


Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: Reports 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 

 
 

LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning 
environments. 
1. District Reading Assessments (DRA) 
2. Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) Data 
3. Acceleration Blocks [small-group, targeted instruction focused on a specific skill(s)] 
4. Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative (CYBHI) Evidence-based Practices and Community-

Defined Evidence Practices Grant Program 
  
  
LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and 
supportive environments. 
1. Community Bond Measure Survey 
  
  
OTHER REPORTS 
1. School Calendars 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: March 20, 2024 
 

 
LCAP GOAL 1 

 

 
 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in a variety of learning 
environments. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. District Reading Assessments (DRA) 
Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director 

  
  
2. Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) Data 

Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director 
  
  
3. Acceleration Blocks [small-group, targeted instruction focused on a specific skill(s)] 

Claudia Del Toro Anguiano, Curriculum Director 
  
  
4. Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative (CYBHI) Evidence-based Practices and 

Community-Defined Evidence Practices Grant Program 
Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 



District Reading Assessments (DRA) End of Second Trimester Results, Winter 2024

The District Reading Assessments (DRA) are foundational skills reading tests which includes
phonological awareness, reading fluency and reading accuracy. The results assist with the
identification of specific reading skills mastered as well as reading skills that may require
additional analysis. The DRA assesses the ‘word recognition’ portion of the reading rope.

The table below indicates the percent of students in Grades K-3 who
met/exceeded all end of the second trimester reading benchmarks:

Winter 2024 Overall Kinder First Second Third

District 56% 75% 66% 36% 49%

Greer 43% 34% 68% 33% 40%

Lake Canyon 55% 100% 52% 34% 44%

Marengo Ranch 64% 82% 67% 42% 63%

River Oaks 55% 78% 70% 33% 52%

Valley Oaks 65% 91% 74% 41% 49%

The table below indicates the percent of students (cohorts) who met/exceeded all
end of the trimester reading benchmarks in spring of 2023 baseline, current winter 2024 progress,
as well as the projected 2024 spring target.

LCAP Goal 1: DRA results to increase by 10% each year (spring to spring for Grades 1-3)

(fall to spring for Kindergarten)

District Spring 2023
Baseline

Fall 2023 Winter 2024
Progress

Spring 2024
Target

Kinder 73% 63% 75% 73%

First 63% 54% 66% 83%

Second 62% 41% 36% 73%

Third 70% 43% 49% 72%



Greer Spring 2023
Baseline

Fall 2023 Winter 2024
Progress

Spring 2024
Target

Kinder 65% 33% 34% 43%

First 71% 42% 68% 75%

Second 49% 30% 33% 81%

Third 73% 47% 40% 59%

Lake
Canyon

Spring 2023
Baseline

Fall 2023 Winter 2024
Progress

Spring 2024
Target

Kinder 89% 100% 100% 100%

First 53% 59% 52% 99%

Second 54% 36% 34% 63%

Third 64% 32% 44% 64%

Marengo
Ranch

Spring 2023
Baseline

Fall 2023 Winter 2024
Progress

Spring 2024
Target

Kinder 71% 75% 82% 85%

First 78% 55% 67% 81%

Second 69% 54% 42% 88%

Third 79% 51% 63% 79%

River
Oaks

Spring 2023
Baseline

Fall 2023 Winter 2024
Progress

Spring 2024
Target

Kinder 69% 76% 78% 86%

First 50% 46% 70% 79%

Second 66% 41% 33% 60%

Third 69% 49% 52% 76%

Valley
Oaks

Spring 2023
Baseline

Fall 2023 Winter 2024
Progress

Spring 2024
Target

Kinder 69% 55% 91% 65%

First 88% 67% 74% 79%

Second 74% 51% 41% 98%

Third 66% 30% 49% 84%



Board Meeting
March 2024

Report:

Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) Winter 2024 Results

The MAP Growth assessment is administered to all students in Grades 1 - 8 in the area of
reading and mathematics. The results are used to measure both achievement and growth.
These results provide staff with actionable data to help target instruction and provide
appropriate intervention. The results are reviewed for individual student and student groups.
The data below reflects the percent of students who reached the target of scoring at/above the
60th percentile. Students who reach the target percentile have a greater probability of
meeting/exceeding the expected achievement levels on state assessments.

LCAP Goal 1: MAP results to increase by 5% each year (winter to winter)

The table below indicates the percent of student groups (cohorts) who met/exceeded the target
percentile as measured by MAP for winter 2023 and winter 2024:

Reading Mathematics

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

First 30% First 26%

Second 34% 44% Yes Second 40% 58% Yes

Third 53% 49% Yes Third 47% 54% Yes

Fourth 37% 46% no Fourth 36% 48% no

Fifth 39% 41% no Fifth 27% 35% no

Sixth 45% 40% no Sixth 32% 35% Yes

Seventh 42% 46% no Seventh 34% 37% Yes

Eighth 41% 45% no Eighth 43% 36% no



RIver Oaks Elementary

Reading Math

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

First 18% First 16%

Second 45% 49% Yes Second 51% 63% Yes

Third 56% 60% Yes Third 65% 70% Yes

Fourth 35% 58% no Fourth 23% 44% no

Fifth 37% 37% no Fifth 22% 25% no

Sixth 48% 39% no Sixth 30% 28% Yes

Greer Elementary

Reading Math

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

First 40% First 41%

Second 32% 40% no Second 34% 52% Yes

Third 54% 40% Yes Third 41% 45% Yes

Fourth 41% 47% no Fourth 49% 63% Yes

Fifth 31% 42% no Fifth 24% 39% no

Sixth 51% 29% no Sixth 33% 35% Yes

Lake Canyon Elementary

Reading Math

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

First 40% First 41%

Second 23% 47% Yes Second 29% 56% Yes

Third 49% 40% Yes Third 40% 46% Yes

Fourth 43% 54% Yes Fourth 51% 70% Yes

Fifth 51% 54% Yes Fifth 37% 53% no

Sixth 47% 42% no Sixth 43% 42% Yes



Marengo Ranch Elementary

Reading Math

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

First 23% First 15%

Second 37% 66% Yes Second 43% 79% Yes

Third 64% 66% Yes Third 52% 61% Yes

Fourth 36% 46% no Fourth 34% 33% no

Fifth 52% 40% no Fifth 42% 38% no

Sixth 47% 51% no Sixth 29% 44% no

Valley Oaks Elementary

Reading Math

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

First 31% First 13%

Second 31% 22% no Second 40% 43% Yes

Third 43% 44% Yes Third 35% 50% Yes

Fourth 26% 24% no Fourth 20% 29% no

Fifth 23% 33% Yes Fifth 10% 16% no

Sixth 36% 36% Yes Sixth 24% 28% Yes

McCaffrey Middle School

Reading Math

Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met? Winter
2023

Winter
2024

Goal Met?

Sixth 45% Sixth 32%

Seventh 42% 46% no Seventh 34% 37% Yes

Eighth 41% 45% no Eighth 43% 36% no



Acceleration Blocks, Second Trimester 2024 Results

Acceleration blocks provide targeted support to students at all schools. Students receive
small-group instruction -that is focused on a specific skill- through an eight session rotation.
The sessions run twice a week for an hour and take place after school. The data below reflects
the total number of students who attended at least one session and were present for at least 7
days. The data set also includes the percent of students who grew by 5% from fall 2023 to
winter 2024 as measured by MAP (Grades 1-8) or by a specific assessment in PK, TK, and K :

Acceleration Blocks
Second Trimester

Winter 2024

Total
Participants

Percent
Meeting 5%
Growth
Target

Total
Participants

Percent
Meeting 5%
Growth
Target

School English Language Arts Mathematics

River Oaks 19 68% 46 57%

Marengo Ranch X X 21 52%

Lake Canyon 46 46% 46 65%

Greer 30 80% 7 57%

ValleyOaks 19 37% 17 35%

Fairsite 4 100% X X

McCaffrey 8 0% 8 13%

District 126 55% 145 54%

Sample list of skills focused on during acceleration block sessions:

● Multi-digit multiplication
● Long division
● Letter identification
● Reading fluency
● Math foundation skills
● Name writing
● Sight words
● Place value

Comment from one principal:

“For many of the students, additional math instruction paid off with a better understanding of
their grade level concepts. Students were able to complete assignments that they did not
understand in class and were able to have math conversations with their teachers about what
they were learning. Student confidence grew and they were happy to be able to stay after
school and work with their teachers.”



Child Youth Behavioral 
Health Initiative 

Evidence Based Practices (EBPs) and Community-
Defined Evidence Practices Grant Award

March 2024

Board of Education Presentation: March 20, 2024



Governor’s Master Plan for Kids Mental Health 

Governor Newson Announced Master Plan for Kids’ Mental Health 
August 18, 2022 

● $4.7B so every Californian aged 0-25 has greater access to mental 
health and substance use support 

● Whole Child, “All of the Above” Approach
● Multi-year, fundamental overhaul to invest in and build needed system 

infrastructure 
● CYBHI at its core

2



State Wide Behavioral Health 
Efforts

Schools as Centers of Wellness

Transforming Schools into Centers of Wellness isn’t 
simply a matter of tweaking access or programs…

It requires rooting out racist infrastructure.

SCHOOL-LINKED

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEP HEALTHCARE SERVICES

$4.7 BILLION

Master Plan for Kids 
Mental Health

California Youth Behavioral 
Health Initiative

Across a dozen + initiatives

Fee Schedule & Capacity Grants

3



School-Behavioral Health Partnership to Support 
Student Well-Being

● New statewide fee schedule for school-linked behavioral health 
services reimbursement from Medi-Cal and commercial health plans 

● Behavioral health workforce investments including a focus on career 
pipeline programs and developing a new Wellness Coach role, as well as 
investments beyond the CYBHI in school-based and overall behavioral 
health workforce

● Building infrastructure through school-linked partnership and capacity grants 
● Scaling of evidence-based and community-defined practices, with an 

emphasis on racial equity, prevention, early intervention 
● Supporting partnerships between Medi-Cal managed care plans and LEAs 

through SBHIP 

4



School-Behavioral Health Partnership to Support 
Student Well-Being

● CalHOPE Student Services program that provides tools and learning 
community opportunities for schools for SEL 

● Supporting Wellbeing, Mindfulness, and Resilience of Students through 
new grants

● Providing training on trauma-informed care to educators, school 
personnel and childcare providers

● Increasing access to range of pre-clinical services and navigation to 
clinical services for students and families through new virtual services 
platform

5



Evidence Based Practices (EBPs) and Community-Defined 
Evidence Practices Grant Award
Awarded $748,336 over a two year grant period

Goals: 

❖ Institutionalize trauma informed approaches among the district’s student facing staff.
❖ Implement and institutionalize trauma informed restorative justice practices.
❖ Consolidate trauma informed practices and grants districtwide under one umbrella.
❖ Build in-house capacity for ongoing training and mentoring of trauma-informed practices by 

student-facing staff – classroom staff, administrators, and their front office supports.
❖ Improve staff wellness/mitigate secondary trauma through staff wellness programs and 

practices.
❖ Develop and implement a system for early identification and intervention for referral and

treatment of children and families for behavioral health when students have needs that cannot 
be met by Tier I or II MTSS interventions.

❖ Implement in-classroom calming centers in all elementary classrooms.
6



Evidence Based Practices (EBPs) and Community-Defined 
Evidence Practices Grant Award

Strategies

❖ Building Infrastructure: Wellness Coaches Trainer of Trainers Model
❖ Trauma Informed consultant: Susan Jones (Creative Behavior Systems)
❖ Coordinate and develop Tier 1 and 2 MTSS supports, mentor and support staff wellness 

programs; 
❖ District wide trainings to help staff in identifying trauma, recognizing its impact on 

behavioral health, and mitigating its impact by providing tools for supporting student 
resilience. 

❖ Family/Community Trainings and Outreach
❖ Calming Corners
❖ Equity Evaluation Requirement 

7



Evidence Based Practices (EBPs) and Community-Defined 
Evidence Practices Grant Award

Metrics:

❖ Consolidation of Trauma Informed Practices
❖ Reduction in Absenteeism
❖ Reduction in Expulsions and Suspensions
❖ Reduction in Classroom Behavioral Referrals and Use of Calming Corners
❖ Successful Restorative Justice Events
❖ Increased Staff Job Satisfaction with Trauma Informed Practices
❖ Increased Staff Wellness

8



YEAR 
ONE

9



YEAR 
TWO

10



QUESTIONS?

11



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: March 20, 2024 
 

 
LCAP GOAL 2 

 

 
 
LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 
1.  Community Bond Measure Survey 

Lois Yount, Superintendent 
 

From January 9-21, 2024, FM3 Research conducted an online and telephone survey of 500 voters 
in the Galt Joint Union High School District likely to vote in November 2024, including 400 in the 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District and 56 in the Arcohe Union School District. The 
survey was available in English and in Spanish. All three proposed measures tested in the survey 
require 55% voter support to succeed on the ballot; the survey findings indicate that: 
• 58% of voters in the Galt Joint Union High School District are willing to support a potential 

42 million dollar bond measure (+/-4.9% margin of error at the 95% confidence interval); 
• 62% of voters in the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District are willing to support a 

potential 27 million dollar bond measure (+/-4.9% margin of error at the 95% confidence 
interval); and 

• 51% of Arcohe Union Elementary School District voters are willing to support a 5.8 million 
dollar bond measure (+/-13% margin of error at the 95% confidence interval). 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



Key Findings of a Districtwide Survey

220-6990

Galt Joint Union 
Elementary School District 
Voter Attitudes Toward a 
Potential Bond Measure



2

Dates January 9-21, 2024

Survey Type Dual-mode Voter Survey

Research Population Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Voters Likely to Cast a Ballot in November 2024

Total Interviews 404

Margin of Sampling Error Full Sample: ±4.9% at the 95% Confidence Level
Half Sample: ±6.9% at the 95% Confidence Level

Contact Methods

Data Collection Modes

Languages English and Spanish

(Note: Not All Results Will Sum to 100% Due to Rounding)

Text
Invitations

Telephone
Calls

Email
Invitations

Telephone
Interviews

Online
Interviews

Survey Methodology



3

Introducing the 
Measure



4
Asked Only in Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, n=404

35%

32%

7%

9%

17%

Great need

Some need

Little need

No real need

Don't know

Little/
No Real Need

16%

Great/
Some Need

66%

Two-thirds see a need for additional funding 
for GJUESD.

Would you generally say that the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District has a great 
need for additional funding, some need, a little need, or no real need for additional funding?



5

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Ballot 
Language Tested

If there were an election today, would you vote “yes” in favor of this measure or “no” to oppose it? 

GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT CLASSROOM
REPAIR MEASURE. To upgrade classrooms/schools;
provide science/engineering/technology labs; repair leaky roofs/
aging restrooms; replace outdated portables; improve security/
fire safety; remove asbestos/lead paint; update athletic facilities;
to provide high-quality education, retain/attract quality teachers,
shall Galt Joint Union Elementary School District’s measure
authorizing $27,000,000 in bonds at legal rates, levying $30 per
$100,000 of assessed valuation, raising $1,900,000 annually while
bonds are outstanding, be adopted, requiring audits,
public oversight/spending disclosure, funds controlled locally?

Approved by Bond Counsel; 55% Threshold for Passage



6

39%

19%

5%

4%

7%

20%

7%

Definitely yes

Probably yes

Undecided, lean yes

Undecided, lean no

Probably no

Definitely no

Undecided

Total 
Yes
62%

If there were an election today, would you vote “yes” in favor of this measure or “no” to oppose it? 
Asked Only in Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, n=404

58%

Total 
No

31%

Three in five support the 
measure initially.

+/-4.9% Margin of Error



7

Elements of the 
Measure



8

I am now going to read you a list of individual features and provisions that might be included in a ballot measure.  Please tell me how important it is to you 
that each feature or provision be included.  Is it extremely important, very important, somewhat important, or not too important? 
^Not Part of Split Sample; *Asked Only in Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, n=404

A high-quality education, clean and safe classrooms, safe 
drinking water, and retaining teachers are top 

priorities for voters.
(Ranked by Extremely/Very Important)

Ext./Very
Impt.
89%

85%

84%

84%

82%

80%

78%

77%

77%

56%

39%

54%

45%

45%

44%

43%

45%

42%

32%

46%

31%

38%

38%

36%

35%

32%

35%

7%

9%

8%

9%

8%

14%

16%

14%

14%

5%

6%

6%

8%

5%

6%

6%

*Providing a high-quality education

Providing clean and safe classrooms

^Continuing to provide safe
drinking water

^Retaining and attracting 
quality teachers

Keeping schools safe and clean

Preparing students for 21st century jobs

^Repairing leaky roofs

*Providing safe places for 
children to play

Improving accessibility for 
disabled students

Ext. Impt. Very Impt. Smwt. Impt. Not Too Impt. Don't Know



9

I am now going to read you a list of individual features and provisions that might be included in a ballot measure.  Please tell me how important it is to you 
that each feature or provision be included.  Is it extremely important, very important, somewhat important, or not too important? 
^Not Part of Split Sample; *Asked Only in Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, n=404

Preventing gang violence and removing asbestos 
are highly important.

(Ranked by Extremely/Very Important) Ext./Very
Impt.
76%

74%

74%

74%

73%

73%

72%

72%

72%

44%

50%

48%

42%

37%

36%

47%

38%

37%

32%

25%

26%

32%

36%

37%

25%

34%

34%

14%

14%

17%

17%

17%

17%

14%

20%

18%

7%

9%

8%

6%

6%

8%

10%

6%

7%

Improving safety to prevent 
gang-related violence

^Removing asbestos and lead paint

^Upgrading outdated electrical wiring

Upgrading fire safety systems

^Repairing deteriorating schools 
and classrooms

Updating active shooter preparedness

*Providing science, engineering, 
math, technology and agricultural labs

Ext. Impt. Very Impt. Smwt. Impt. Not Too Impt. Don't Know

Upgrading fire safety systems including 
safety doors, fireproofing, 

smoke alarms, and detectors

Upgrading security including emergency 
lighting, fencing, locks, alarms and 
cameras on all school campuses to 

maintain student safety



10

Messaging



11

48%

42%

40%

27%

22%

31%

75%

64%

71%

Much More Incl. Smwt. More Incl.

I’m going to read some statements from supporters of the measures we’ve been discussing. Please tell me if this makes you more inclined to vote yes. 
^Not Part of Split Sample

(CAREER) Students who do not go to college need a career technical 
and vocational education that provides the job training, technical 

knowledge and specialized skills to compete for good-paying jobs. 
The Galt Joint Union High School District measure allows local 

high schools to upgrade career technical and vocational education 
programs that give students opportunities to train and learn the skills 

they need to obtain a job in a competitive economy.
(SCHOOL SHOOTINGS) Last year saw a record number of school 
shootings in the US putting over 43,000 students in harm’s way. 

Our local neighborhood schools need to continue to upgrade their 
security by upgrading emergency communications systems, 

lighting, and door locks, as well as fencing, alarms and cameras on all 
school campuses to maintain student safety so that students, 

teachers and staff remain safe.
^(REPAIR OLD SCHOOLS) Many local schools need basic health and 

safety improvements because they were built decades ago.  
These measures will repair deteriorating classrooms, leaky roofs, 

decaying walls, plumbing, and bathrooms; remove asbestos and lead 
paint; and update aging fire systems. Children deserve and need safe, 

clean schools so they can learn and succeed.

(Ranked by Much More Inclined to Vote Yes)

Messages focused on career education, preventing 
school shootings and basic repairs resonate most.



12

39%

35%

34%

27%

33%

28%

66%

68%

62%

Much More Incl. Smwt. More Incl.

I’m going to read some statements from supporters of the measures we’ve been discussing. Please tell me if this makes you more inclined to vote yes. 
^Not Part of Split Sample

^(ACCOUNTABILITY) These bond measures are subject to strict 
accountability requirements, including public disclosure of all 

spending, independent annual audits, review of all spending by an 
Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee. By law, no funds can be 

spent on administrators’ salaries or pensions. All funds are required to 
be spent to improve our local schools and cannot be taken 

by the state.

(TEACHERS) These measures will help our schools retain and attract 
qualified teachers that are the backbone of a quality education.  

The best teachers will want to teach in our community because of 
upgraded classrooms, improved classroom learning technology, and 

up-to-date, clean and safe schools.

(GANGS) Gangs and gun violence are a major problem in our 
community. Guns and violence have no place in our schools. 

The Galt Joint Union High School District measure will invest in school 
safety and security to keep our campuses secure and will provide 

funding for sports fields and educational afterschool classrooms that 
help kids stay out of trouble.

(Ranked by Much More Inclined to Vote Yes)

Accountability, retaining teachers and preventing 
gangs are also strong messages.



13

33%

31%

30%

25%

37%

33%

28%

30%

70%

64%

58%

55%

Much More Incl. Smwt. More Incl.

I’m going to read some statements from supporters of the measures we’ve been discussing. Please tell me if this makes you more inclined to vote yes. 
Split Sample; *Asked Only in Galt Joint Union Elementary School District, n=404

(TECHNOLOGY) This measure will upgrade classrooms and labs to 
ensure that all students have access to the up-to-date instructional 

technology to promote an education with a strong foundation in 
science, technology, engineering and math.  These investments will 

ensure our students have a better opportunity to compete for 
21st century careers.

*(ATTENDANCE) Since the pandemic, schools around the state have 
struggled with attendance and keeping students interested. 

The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District measure will provide 
classrooms and equipment for science, technology, arts, 

and media classrooms that prepare students for the future 
and keep them engaged and in school.

*(AGRICULTURE PROGRAMS) Our community has a long legacy of 
agriculture. The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District measure 

will provide equipment, technology, and classrooms to teach students 
about future careers in agriculture and to help them prepare for 

high school and college.

(COMMUNITY) Local high schools serve as an important gathering 
place for community events. The Galt Joint Union High School District 

measure will upgrade local classrooms, gyms, and performing arts 
spaces so that everyone in our community will benefit from the 

upgraded facilities.

(Ranked by Much More Inclined to Vote Yes)

The message on a community gathering space tests weakest.



14

Definitely yes

Probably yes

Undecided, lean yes

Undecided, lean no

Probably no

Definitely no

Undecided

39%

19%

5%

4%

7%

20%

7%

Total 
Yes
62%

58%

Initial Vote Vote After Education

45%

15%

6%

2%

7%

18%

6%

Total 
Yes
66%

60%

If there were an election today, would you vote “yes” in favor of this measure or “no” to oppose it? 

Total 
No

31%

Total 
No

27%

Support for the elementary school measure fluctuates 
with messaging and remains above 55%.

+/-4.9% Margin of Error



15

Conclusions



16

Conclusions
• The proposed Galt Joint Union Elementary School District measure 

appears viable for the November 2024 ballot,
• The proposed measure consistently receives support from three in 

five voters, above the 55% threshold.
• Voters place the greatest priority on a high-quality education, safe 

and clean classrooms, safe drinking water and retaining and 
attracting quality teachers.
 Ballot language could be strengthened to reflect voter priorities.

• Messages focused on career pathways, preventing school shootings, 
and repairing old schools are most convincing.

• The results of the survey indicate that the measure has a path to 
success at the ballot if accompanied with public education informing 
voters of the measure’s goals.



For more information, 
contact:



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: March 20, 2024 
 

 
OTHER REPORTS 

 

 
 
 
OTHER REPORTS 
 

1. School Calendars 
School Principals/Assistant Principals 

 
 
 
 
 
 



S U N M O N T U E W E D T H U F R I S A T

1

N O  S C H O O L

2

P L A Y G R O U P
B E G L A D  P D

3

S T A F F
M E E T I N G

4 5

2 N D  C U P  O F
C O F F E E

S A F E T Y  D R I L L

6

7 8

PLAYGROUP

S P I R I T
W E E K

9

P L A Y G R O U P

1 0

M A T H
W O R K S H O P
# 2  3 : 0 0 - 4 : 0 0

1 1 1 2 1 3

1 4 1 5

P L A Y G R O U P

1 6

P L A Y G R O U P

1 7

B O A R D
M E E T I N G

1 8

T E A C H I N G
P Y R A M I D  P D

G E F A

1 9

T E A C H I N G
P Y R A M I D

20

2 1 2 2

P L A Y G R O U P

2 3

P L A Y G R O U P

D L I  P D

2 4

M A T H
W O R K S H O P
# 3  3 : 0 0 - 4 : 0 0

2 5 2 6

N O  S C H O O L

27

28 2 9

P L A Y G R O U P

3 0

P L A Y G R O U P

A
P
R
IL

2 0 2 4

F A I R S I T E
E L E M E N T A R Y  A N D
E A R L Y  L E A R N I N G

C E N T E R

9 0 2  C A R O L I N E   S T .
G A L T ,  C A  9 5 6 3 2  
( 2 0 9 )  7 4 5 - 2 5 0 6

L A U R A  M A R Q U E Z
P R I N C I P A L





Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

 1 

 

No School  

Spring Break  

2 

 

 

 

 

3 4 

 

 

5 

 

 

6 

7 8 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

9 

6th Grade to  

Cosumnes River 

Preserve 
 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

10 

Family Pizza Dinner 

5:00 Multi 
 

Open House  

Celebration of 

Learning  5:30  

11 

Fire Drill 10:30 
 

MTSS  
 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

12 13 

14 15 

 

Staff Meeting  

2:35 PM   BFLC 

16 17 

 

GJUESD Board 

Meeting  7PM 

18 

House Meeting  

1:55  
 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

19 

Character Counts  

1:45  Multi 

 

Girls Basketball  

Practice    2:30  

20 

21 22 23 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

24 25 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

26 
 

No School  

 

27 

28 29 

 

Girls Basketball Game 

LC vs. River Oaks  

3:00 at River Oaks   

30 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

    

Lake Canyon Board Calendar  
April 2024 

Kinder Dismissal 1:00 

Kinder Dismissal 1:00 

Testing Window Open  
 

MAP Reading & Math - Grades 1 & 2  
April 22 - May 10 

 

SBAC ELA & Math - Grades 3 - 8 
April 15 - May 17 

BOGO Book Fair in BFLC 

6th Grade to  
Stockton Ports  

 
Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

            House Rally 1:55  
 

Acceleration Blocks  

2:45 

       1st Grade to Fog   
          Willow Farms 
 

BFLA to Effie Yeaw 
Nature Center 

 
Girls Basketball  

Practice    2:30  

Boys Basketball Game 

LC vs. River Oaks  

3:00 at Lake Canyon   



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

 1 2 

 

3 4 5 6 

7 8 

 

9 10 11 

 

12 13 

14 15 16 17 

 

18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 

 

27 

28 29 30     

April 2024 
McCaffrey Middle School 

Sports: Softball  Season - March 4—April 30th 

ELPAC Summative Assessment (SA) Window - Feb 5 - April 12 
SBAC Window - April 15 - May 17th 

CA Physical Fitness Testing - Feb 5 - May 17th

Club Live - Library 
During Lunches 

Club Live - Library 
During Lunches 

Club Live - Library 
During Lunches 

Club Live - Library 
During Lunches 

Board Meeting @ 7pm 

Environmental Club 
Canoemobile @ 12pm  

No School  

Fire Drill MTSS Meetings 

6th Grade Shadow Day 

504 Meetings 

Academic  
Conferences 

Incoming 7th Grade 
Zoom 6 -  7pm 

AVID Spring  
Certification Visit 

6th Grade Shadow Day 

6th Grade Shadow Day 

6th Grade Shadow Day 

Home Game vs Lickety 
Split @ 3:30pm 

Home Game vs Arcohe 
@ 3:30pm 

Away Game vs Arcohe 
@ 3:30pm 

Family Bingo Night  
6 - 7:30pm 

6th Grade Shadow Day 



SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 

 1  
 

NO SCHOOL 

2  
 

L e a r n i n g  
E v e n t / S B A C  

t r a i n i n g  

3  
 

M a t h  P i l o t  
 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

4  
 

E L A C  m e e t i n g  
@ 1 : 3 0  

 
K O N A  I C E  

5  
 
 

6  

7  8  9  
 

1 0  
 

S p r i n g  P i c t u r e  
D a y  

 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

1 1  
P T K C  m e e t i n g  

 
C h a r a c t e r  

C o u n t s   
A s s e m b l y  8 a m  

1 2  
E L P A C  w i n d o w  

c l o s e s  
 

D r e s s  L i k e  
Y o u r  P a r e n t  

1 3  

1 4  1 5  
 

S B A C  W i n d o w  
o p e n s  

1 6  
 

M a t h  P i l o t  
 

E L D  m e e t i n g  
@ 2 : 5 0  

1 7  
 
 
 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

1 8  
 

G E F A  
M T S S  

 
E m e r g e n c y  

D r i l l  

1 9  
Morn ing  S ing  

 

2 0  

2 1  2 2  
 

M A P  w i n d o w  
o p e n s  

 

2 3  
 

L e a d e r s h i p  
m e e t i n g  

2 4  
 
 
 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

2 5  
5 t h  g r a d e  U O P  

t r i p  
 

A d m i n  w a l k  
t h r o u g h  

2 6  
 

NO SCHOOL 

2 7  

2 8  
 

R u n n i n ’  F o r  
R h e t t  r a c e  d a y  

2 9  
 

D R A  w i n d o w  
o p e n s  

3 0  
 

Y a r d  M e e t i n g  
@ 8 : 1 5 a m  

       

April 2024 
�

Important 
Reminders 

 
 
Runnin’ For Rhett on 

Monday & Wednesday 
after school 

 
 

04/05 & 04/19 
Kinder 1pm dismissal 

 
 
 

04/17 Board Meeting 
04/19 Admin Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marengo Ranch 
Elementary 

1000 Elk Hills Dr 
Galt, CA 95632 
209-745-5470 

6th Grade Canoe trip 
 
PTKC family dance @6:30 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
 1 

 
School Not in Session 

2 3 4 
 
 
 
 

PTA Meeting  

5 
 

Boy’s Basketball 
Game @LC 3:00 

6 

7 8 9 10 11 
 
 

12   Girl’s Basketball Practice 
        

6th Fieldtrip to  
Cosumnes-Canoemobile  

 
Character Counts 1:40 

 

13 

14 15 
 

16 
 

17 
 
 
Board Meeting 7pm 

18 
 
 
Thinking Caps Day 

19   Friday Sing 8:15 
 

Shine Bright Days 
 

Girl’s Basketball Practice 

20 

21 
 

 

22 23 
 

Principal’s Lunch  
Bunch 

24 25 
KONA ICE 

 
Literacy Night 
5:30-7:00 pm 

26 
 

School Not  
In Session 

27 

28 29 
 

Girls Basketball  
Game  RO @ LC 3pm 

30 
 

4th  Grade Fieldtrip 
To Sutter’s Fort 

  
 

 

  

R  O k  E nt   
       A  2024 

Book Fair 4/8—4/12 





 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.478 
Board Consideration of Approval of Consent 
Calendar 
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a. Approval of the Agenda 
  
b. Minutes 
  February 21, 2024 Regular Board of Education Meeting 
  
c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: Vendor Warrants: 24466327-24466340; 24466960-
24467005;24467961-24468013;24469537-24469597; 24471087-24471138 

 Payroll Warrants: 2/16/24, 2/29/24, 3/8/24 
  
d. Personnel 
  Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 
 Job Shares 

  
e. Donations 
  
f. Catapult Emergency Management System Quote/Contract 
  
g. Aya Healthcare master Contract for Non Public Schools and Agencies 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education Minutes 

 
Regular Meeting 
February 21, 2024 
6:00 p.m. Closed Session 
7:00 p.m. Open Session 

Galt City Hall Chamber 
380 Civic Drive, Galt, CA 95632 

 
Webinar ID: 

82385937590 
  
Board Members Administrators Present 
Traci Skinner 
Casey Raboy 
Katherine Harper 
Annette Kunze 
Wesley Cagle 

Lois Yount 
Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano 

Kuljeet Nijjar 
Alejandra Garibay 

Tina Homdus 
Jennifer Porter 
Carlos Castillo 
Leah Wheeler 

Judith Hayes 
 

A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: Galt City Hall Conference Room 
   
B. Traci Skinner called the Closed Session to order at 6:00 p.m. to discuss the following items: 
    
 1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE, Government Code §54957 

 
Present for closed session Item 1: Traci Skinner, Casey Raboy, Katherine Harper, Annette Kunze, 
Wesley Cagle, Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 

    
 2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Non-Represented Employees 

 
Present for closed session Item 2: Traci Skinner, Casey Raboy, Katherine Harper, Annette Kunze, 
Wesley Cagle, Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 

   
 6:34 p.m. Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, and Alejandra Garibay exited closed session. 
  
 3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, Government Code §54957 

 Superintendent 
 
Present for closed session Item 3: Traci Skinner, Casey Raboy, Katherine Harper, Annette Kunze, 
Wesley Cagle, and Lois Yount 

    
 6:41 p.m. Lois Yount exited closed session.  
 6:51 p.m. Lois Yount re-entered closed session.  
    
C. Closed Session adjourned at 7:00 p.m. Open session began at 7:05 p.m. followed by the flag salute. 

Traci Skinner announced the following action taken in closed session: 



2 
 

 
Upon the motion of Casey Raboy, seconded by Katherine Harper by a vote of 5 to 0, up to seven (7) 
temporary and intern teachers to be released no later than at the end of the 2023-24 school year. 

   
D. Presentations/Recognitions 
 1. Vernon E. Greer Elementary choir students performed for the Board.  
   
E. Lois Yount shared the Board Meeting Protocol. 
  
F. Public Comment: Arianne Aguilera addressed the Board regarding the GJUESD music showcase at 

Greer Elementary on March 13, 2024. All school sites will participate. 
  
G. Communications 
 1. Lois Yount shared a communication from the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) 

regarding the 2023-2024 First Interim Report indicating the District received a postitive 
certification. 

   
H. Reports  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. Governor's Proposal for the 2024-25 State Budget and K-12 Education 
  Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official, reported. She indicated the Governor's budget 

measures a $37.9 billion budget shortfall primarily due to 2023 tax collections being well below 
the budget's assumptions.  
 
The Governor's budget proposal protects the education budget against the local impact of a 
nearly $12 billion reduction in Proposition 98 resources. However, the $26 billion shortfall of tax 
revenues for 2022-23 turned an average year into one where the state provided money above the 
minimum guarantee. Ms. Garibay said the District received a large Cost Of Living Adjustment 
(COLA) last year. This year, education faces a COLA-only year where the projected statutory COLA 
is significantly less than 2023-24. She indicated there are recommendations for no COLA for next 
year and even reductions in current budgets for this year. She provided examples of grants and 
one-time money that could be reduced because the Governor has to decide how he will make up 
the budget shortfall.  
 
Ms. Garibay shared what the reduced COLA means for GJUESD versus what was reported in the 
first interim.  
 
Ms. Garibay said the Governor's budget proposes no cuts in Proposition 98 resources. She 
highlighted the following information: 

• Financial Projection Dartboard 
• Minimum Wage – Future Forecast 
• Certificated and Classified Layoffs and State Budget Timelines 

 
The following steps in the process are controlled by the legislature, which is responsible for 
vetting the Governor's proposals during budget hearings over the next several weeks and months. 
 
Ms. Garibay said multi-year budget projections will be reported at the next regular meeting. 
 



3 
 

Annette Kunze, Board Member, restated that although the Governor's budget was just released 
last month, there are already significant changes. 
 
Lois Yount said this is correct. There are so many anticipated changes with the May Revise that 
Trailer Bill language is not being considered at this time. 
 
Ms. Kunze added that there are also laws that have gone into effect at the beginning of this year 
that could, in her opinion, potentially exacerbate the Governor's budget deficit because there is 
potentially going to be a demographic change where more people are relying on social services, 
that could potentially increase costs. She wanted to put that out there regarding trends to be 
aware of.  
 
Ms. Kunze asked if the recent Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (LRE) settlement 
agreement could affect the District budget. As she understands it, the Governor initially 
considered sweeping Emergency Block Grant funds.  
 
Alejandra Garibay concurred that it could affect the District. 

   
 2. CalSCHLS Healthy Kids Survey 

Lois Yount reported the CalSCHLS Healthy Kids Parent Survey is open February 8-28, 2024. She 
encouraged parents and guardians to complete the survey. She indicated the survey is an 
opportunity to communicate perceptions and opinions about their children's school. Participation 
is voluntary but very important to help guide the District and school efforts to promote safety, 
enhance learning supports and improve student achievement. 

   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. AR/E 3517 Facilities Inspection and Education Code 35292.6 
Lois Yount reported that that each school sites’ multi-purpose room has a menstrual 
product dispenser in the boy’s restroom. The education code language states the 
product dispenser must be in at least one men’s restroom. She opened the report up 
for discussion. 
 
Traci Skinner, Board President,  opinioned that the menstrual product dispenser 
should be in the school and health offices' men's restroom to meet the education 
code requirement.  
 
Lois Yount said Marengo Ranch Elementary has a gender-neutral single-stall restroom 
since remodeling that has a menstrual product dispenser. The goal is for all school 
sites to have one gender-neutral stall by the 2025-26 school year. 
 
Katherine Harper, Board Member, recommended following the written education 
code and putting the dispenser in one men's restroom in the school office. 
 
Annette Kunze, Board Member, said she can appreciate the challenges and the 
struggles of looking at this law. She said, in her opinion, the District may need to look 
at what this means for all the other policies the District has in place and how they 
interact. Ms. Kunze feels a lot more thought needs to be put into these. She agrees 

 



4 
 

with placing the dispenser in one men's restroom and the gender-neutral restrooms 
when available. 
 
Wesley Cagle, Board Member, said he is neutral on the placement of menstrual 
product dispensers in the bathrooms. He concurred to follow the language of the law. 

    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. City of Galt Development Update 

Craig Hoffman, Community Development Director, City of Galt, reported. He shared the following 
information: 

• Galt's 2030 General Plan was adopted in 2009. The plan boundary supports a population 
of 51, 640 residents. 

• 2024 City Limits population is 25, 557. The current city boundary supports a population of 
approximately 39,000 residents. 

• 15-year residential building permit history. 
• Residential Project Map and upcoming single-family and multiple-family dwelling 

projects. 
   
 2. City And Schools Together (CAST) 

Lois Yount reported on the February 13, 2024 CAST meeting. She thanked Traci Skinner and Casey 
Raboy, for attending the meeting. Ms. Yount highlighted topics from the Galt High School (GHSD) 
District and the City of Galt. The GHSD shared information on increased security measures 
including adding more security cameras. They are also implementing a new software program for 
parents called BARK. The program uses Advanced Intelligence (AI) to identify keywords that 
students might use online that might trigger a student that needs to talk to someone or that they 
may be in danger and may need help. The GHSD is also considering reducing the number of 
credits required to graduate to be more in line with surrounding high schools. 
 
The City of Galt Parks and Recreation Director, Armando Solis, represented the city. She indicated 
that the new interim city manager, Chris Arias, has been announced, and he will begin work with 
the city towards the end of February. Currently the city is working on master park planning due to 
additional funds the city is receiving from Measure Q. 

   
 3. Flyer Distribution Process (BP/AR 1325 Advertising And Promotion) 

Lois Yount reported the District does not have a consistent process for flyer distribution so one 
has been created. The new process allows the District to send information to parents through the 
parent communication system, Blackboard. The District may also post flyers on the District 
website under a new page called community news. Ms. Yount highlighted that all approved fliers 
will be required in English and Spanish.  

   
 4. School Calendars 

School administrators shared an event from their March 2024 calendars. 
 

    
I. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.466 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar, seconded by 

Casey Raboy. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 

  a. Approval of the Agenda Consent 
Calendar 

     



5 
 

  b. Minutes  

    January 17, 2024 Regular Meeting 
 February 6, 2024 Special Meeting 

 

     

  c. Payment of Warrants 
 Vendor Warrants: 24459099-24459186; 24459847-24459872; 

24461057-24461060; 24460574-24460609; 24462353-24462425; 
24463973-24464033 

 Payroll Warrants: 02/09/24; 01/31/24 

 

     

  d. Personnel  

    Resignations/Retirements 
 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 

 

     

  e. Donations  

     

  f. Every Special Child LLC Master Contract for Nonpublic, Non-Sectarian 
School/Agency Services 

 

     

 232.467 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration 
There were no items removed from the consent calendar. 

CC Items 
Removed 

    

 232.468 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the 2023-24 Comprehensive School 
Safety Plan for Fairsite Elementary, Lake Canyon Elementary, Marengo Ranch 
Elementary, River Oaks Elementary, Valley Oaks Elementary, Vernon E. Greer 
Elementary and Robert L. McCaffrey Middle School, seconded by Katherine 
Harper. The motion carried unanimously. 

Comp 
Safety 
Plans 

    

 Public Comment: Veronica Kauffman addressed the Board, urging them to vote no on 
items 232.469, 232.470, and 232.471. 

 

    

 232.469 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve Resolution No. 11 – Resolution To 
Reduce Or Discontinue Particular Kinds Of Services [Certificated], seconded by 
Traci Skinner. The motion carried unanimously. 

Res 11 
Certificated 

Layoff 

    

 Public Comment:  
1. Maria Bernal addressed the Board regarding training for Instructional Assistants 

and compensation. 
2. Sarah Delgado addressed the Board regarding reductions and their effect on staff. 

 

    

 232.470  
Katherine Harper made a motion to approve Resolution No. 12 – Resolution to 
Reduce Particular Kinds Of Service And Abolish Classified Positions Due To Lack 
Of Work Or Lack of Funds [Classified], seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

Res 12 
Classified 

Layoff 

    



6 
 

 232.471 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve Resolution No. 13 – Resolution To 
Reduce Particular Kinds Of Service Due To Lack Of Work Or Lack Of Funds 
[Classified], seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion carried unanimously. 

Res 13 
Classified 

Reductions 

    

 232.472 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve Resolution No. 14 – Resolution To 
Eliminate And/Or Reduce The Number Of Child Development Permit Employees 
Due To Lack Of Work And/Or Lack Of Funds [Preschool], seconded by Annette 
Kunze. The motion carried unanimously. 

Res 14 
Child Dev 

Permit 
Emp 

Layoff 
    

 232.473 Katherine Harper made a motion to approve the 2023-24 Arts and Music in 
Schools (AMS) Annual Report [Proposition 28], seconded by Annette Kunze. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

AMS 
Annual 
Report 

    

 232.474 Wesley Cagle made a motion to vote for Ken Barnes (Robla SD) and Christine 
Jefferson (Twin Rivers USD) for the 2024 California School Boards Association 
(CSBA) Delegate Assembly. The motion did not carry due to the lack of a second 
motion. 

CSBA Del 
Ballot 

    

 232.475 Traci Skinner made a motion to Piggyback on the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Contract with American Modular Systems for two Modular and/or 
Prefabricated Structures (Building(s)), Portable Classrooms at Vernon E. Greer 
Elementary School, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

GE 
Portables 

    
 232.476 Wesley Cagle made a motion to Change the June 2024 Regular Board Meeting 

from June 19, 2024 at the Galt City Hall Chamber to June 18, 2024 at the Galt 
Joint Union Elementary School District Office, seconded by Katherine Harper. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

June Mtg 
Date 

Change 

    
 232.477 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the following Board Policies (BP), 

Administrative Regulations (AR) and Bylaw (BB), seconded by Annette Kunze. 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
1. BP 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan 
2. AR 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan 
3. BP 0500 – Accountability 
4. BP 0520 – Intervention in Underperforming Schools 
5. AR 1220 – Citizen Advisory Committees 
6. BP 1431 – Waivers 
7. BP 3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts 
8. AR 3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts 
9. BP 5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers 
10. BP 5131.2 – Bullying 
11. AR 5131.2 – Bullying 
12. AR 5141.21 – Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions 
13. BP 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
14. AR 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
15. BP 6170.1 – Transitional Kindergarten 
16. BP 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education 

Policies 



7 
 

17. AR 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education 
18. BP 9321 Closed Session 
19. E(1) 9321 Closed Session 
20. E(2) 9321 Closed Session 
21. BP 1325 Advertising And Promotion 

    
J. Public Comments: Veronica Kauffman addressed the Board regarding AR/E 3517 Facilities Inspection 

and Education Code 35292.6. 
   
K. Pending Agenda Items  
 1. Acceleration Blocks  
 2. School Resource Officer (SRO) Report  
    
L. Adjournment 9:05 p.m.  
    

 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Katherine Harper, Clerk 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Date 



Recommend approval of the following:

Resignations/Retirees

Name Position Effective Date Site

Trinnaman, Tammy (Retirement,
24 years)

Teacher 6/7/24 Lake Canyon

Leave of Absence Requests

Name Position Effective Date Site
Avila, Cynthia Instructional Assistant 2/8/24 Fairsite

Celli, Sherri Instructional Assistant 1/18/24 Vernon E. Greer

Frey, Debra Instructional Assistant 4/24/24 Lake Canyon

Ibanez, Sofia Bilingual Instructional Assistant 2/20/24 Valley Oaks

Margiott, Pamela Teacher 3/5/24 River Oaks

Parra Fregoso, Minerva Bilingual Instructional Assistant 2/22/24 Fairsite

Puentes, Janeya Teacher 2/23/24 Fairsite

Torres, Maria Yard Supervisor 2/20/24 Valley Oaks

Wilson, Melissa Teacher 3/12/24 Vernon E. Greer

New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes

Name Position Site

Abujen, Josephine Classified Substitute N/A

Cates, Lea Certificated Substitute N/A

Contreras Arias, Stephanie Classified Substitute N/A

Corona, Jamie Classified Substitute N/A

Crandell, Alayna Teacher Vernon E. Greer

Declusin, Makena Short Term Instructional Assistant, Special Education N/A

Gomez, Katie Classified Substitute N/A

Lopez Macias, Guadalupe Instructional Assistant, Special Education Fairsite

Lozano, Richard Certificated Substitute N/A

Mendez, Xavier Classified Substitute N/A

Ocegueda, Alexander Yard Supervisor Lake Canyon

Ortiz, Ester Classified Substitute N/A

Ramirez, Yoselin Classified Substitute N/A

Reuthinger, Shelby Classified Substitute N/A

Teixeira, Kandy Classified Substitute N/A

Torres Camacho, Joshelyn Short Term Bilingual Instructional Assistant Fairsite

GJUESD Board Meeting March 20, 2024



Human Resources
Page 2

Job Share

Name Position Grade Term

Danielle Ketner (50%)
Jamie Lacayo (50%)

Teachers Grade 2 2024-2025 Lake Canyon

Holly Rose-Dorward (50%)
Alayna Crandell (50%)

Teachers Grade 3 2024-2025 Vernon E. Greer

The GEFA Agreement Article XI, teachers applying for a job-sharing position shall discuss the terms, compatibility,
and assignment of the job-sharing position with the principal/administration. If a satisfactory arrangement is
agreed upon, it shall be submitted in writing to the Board by principal/administration.



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: March 20, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Donations 
 

  
 
 
River Oaks Elementary 

• Green Acres Nursery & Supply donated cactus, succulents and soil for the Galt Expanded 
Learning Opportunities Program - Garden Project valued at $71.50   

 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: March 20, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Catapult EMS Quote/Contract 

 
  

 
 
 
The District has contracted with CatapultEMS for emergency communication. With CatapultEMS, 
we will develop an emergency communication plan that stays clear, centralized, and informed at all 
times with teachers, sites, district and law enforcement. Uses real-time student accounting, 
reunification, staff location check-ins, threat report management, and more - all from a responsive, 
dependable, cloud-based system. 
 
Year 1 with Start Up Fees - $8,958 
Year 2 Annual Services - $6,555 

 
 

 



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

QUOTE FOR

 Galt Joint Union Elementary School 
District 

INTEGRATED EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS 

Prepared For: 
 

 Kuljeet Nijjar 

 knijjar@galt.k12.ca.us 

Prepared By: 
 

 Paul Huff 
 phuff@catapultk12.com 



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

4 Products in 1 Software

WeTip Anonymous Community 
Reporting Integration* 

Anonymous online bully, tip, and threat reports go directly 

to your site's safety team to respond, escalate, resolve and 

archive reports.

*Requires purchase of the WeTip Anonymous Tip 

Reporting Software 

 Emergency Alerts 

Automatic emergency alerts sent via text, email and phone to 

staff, teachers, admin and �rst responders. 



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

Emergency Management System 

Full emergency management system with real-time 

student and staff accountability, digital emergency 

resources, two-way communication and �rst responder 

integration. 

 Student/Parent Reuni�cation 

Initiate a reuni�cation process at the conclusion of an 

emergency to reunite students with their emergency contacts. 

POWERFUL FEATURES



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

CatapultEMS Quote

Client:  Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Date: 12 / 13 / 2023 

Contact: Kuljeet Nijjar Phone: +1 209-744-5200 

Address: 1018 C Street Suite 210, Galt, California, 
95632 

Email: knijjar@galt.k12.ca.us 

Catapult Contact: Paul Huff Catapult Email: phuff@catapultk12.com 

Year 1: Setup and Service Fees

EMS Year 1 (Setup + Service) Quantity Price Subtotal

ONE-TIME SETUP FEES

EMS Setup Fee
Setup Includes: Single Sign-on, Evacuation Map, 
Emergency Procedure Manual, Emergency Checklist, 
Incident Type, Report Status, Scripts, Site Con�guration, 
Student Information System Integration, when applicable

1 $1,100.00 $1,100.00

ONE-TIME TRAINING FEES

Online Learning Management System Training
Up to 550-users included in LMS training

550 $1.10 $605.00

Virtual Training
Live virtual training provided for District and Safety 
Teams only with a certi�ed CatapultEMS trainer. 
Trainings provided via online web meetings software 
such as Zoom.

2 $349.00 $698.00

ANNUAL SERVICE FEES (YEAR 1 ONLY)



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

EMS Service Fee
Includes: 

• Emergency Noti�cation Alerts (email, text and 
mobile app silent override alert for Teachers, 
Staff, First Responders and SST/DST)

• Emergency Management System (EMS) + 
Incident Command System (ICS)

• Reuni�cation

Sites Included:
1. Galt Joint Union Elementary School District O�ce
2. Lake Canyon Elementary
 3. Marengo Ranch Elementary
 4. McCaffrey Middle
 5. River Oaks Elementary
 6. Valley Oaks Elementary
 7. Vernon E. Greer Elementary
 8. School Readiness Center - Fairsite Campus

12-months from March 2024 -  February 2025 for 8 total 
sites and 3,563 total students

3563 $2.04 $7,268.52

Service Discount
Multi-Product Discount (current CatapultCMS client)

3563 -$0.20 -$712.60

ANNUAL ALERTING FEES  (OPTIONAL)

Mobile Phone Alert
Emergency Noti�cation Alert for 550 staff and teachers 
in the form of a phone call to all mobile and phone 
call devices with a phone number.

550 $0.89 $489.50

Computer Popup Takeover
Windows 10 and 11 capabilities for application to run 
districtwide on computer devices. Computer takeover 
popup will make a noise on the computer as well as 
popup with information about alert. 

1 $800.00 $800.00

YEAR 1 TOTAL $8,958.92



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

Year 2: Annual Service Fees

EMS Year 2 (Annual Service) Quantity Price Subtotal

EMS Service Fee
 Yearly Service for 8 total sites and 3,563 total students 

Includes: 
• Emergency Noti�cation Alerts (email, text and 

mobile app silent override alert for Teachers, 
Staff, First Responders and SST/DST)

• Emergency Management System (EMS) + 
Incident Command System (ICS)

• Reuni�cation

3563 $2.04 $7,268.52

Service Discount
Multi-Product Discount (current CatapultCMS client)

3563 -$0.20 -$712.60

ANNUAL TRAINING OPTIONS

Online LMS Re-Training
Includes: Site Safety Team, Bully Response Team, 
Staff/Teacher and Police Refresher Training yearly 

110 $0.00 $0.00

Virtual Training
We offer a virtual district and safety team retraining for 
new hires and to learn about our new releases each year. 

1 $349.00 $349.00

ANNUAL ALERTING FEES (OPTIONAL)

Mobile Phone Alert 
Emergency Noti�cation Alert for 550 staff and teachers 
in the form of a phone call to all mobile and phone 
call devices with a phone number

550 $0.89 $489.50

Computer Popup Takeover
Windows 10 and 11 capabilities for application to run 
districtwide on computer devices. Computer takeover 
popup will make a noise on the computer as well as 
popup with information about alert. 

1 $800.00 $800.00

YEAR 2 TOTAL $6,555.92



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

Year 3: Annual Service Fees

EMS Year 3 (Annual Service) Quantity Price Subtotal

EMS Service Fee
 Yearly Service for 8 total sites and 3,563 total students 

Includes: 
• Emergency Noti�cation Alerts (email, text and 

mobile app silent override alert for Teachers, 
Staff, First Responders and SST/DST)

• Emergency Management System (EMS) + 
Incident Command System (ICS)

• Reuni�cation

3563 $2.04 $7,268.52

Service Discount
Multi-Product Discount (current CatapultCMS client)

3563 -$0.20 -$712.60

ANNUAL TRAINING OPTIONS

Online LMS Re-Training
Includes: Site Safety Team, Bully Response Team, 
Staff/Teacher and Police Refresher Training yearly 

110 $0.00 $0.00

Virtual Training
We offer a virtual district and safety team retraining for 
new hires and to learn about our new releases each year. 

1 $349.00 $349.00

ANNUAL ALERTING FEES (OPTIONAL)

Mobile Phone Alert 
Emergency Noti�cation Alert for 550 staff and teachers 
in the form of a phone call to all mobile and phone 
call devices with a phone number

550 $0.89 $489.50

Computer Popup Takeover
Windows 10 and 11 capabilities for application to run 
districtwide on computer devices. Computer takeover 
popup will make a noise on the computer as well as 
popup with information about alert. 

1 $800.00 $800.00

YEAR 3 TOTAL $6,555.92



5098 Foothills Blvd #3-396, Roseville, CA 95747 

855.550.9006 | sales@catapultems.com

CatapultK12 | Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  

PAYMENT & TERMS OF USE

Terms: By signing below, Client approves this quote and certifies that they understand and accept what work is to be performed for the price 
defined.  Client will pay Catapult half of the one-time setup fees upon signing this document and the second half at the contract start date. 
This quote is good for 30-days. By signing this quote the client agrees to the Terms of Use on the CatapultK12.com website. By signing this 
quote the client agrees to the Terms of Use on the WeTip.com website. Once signed, please email, electronically sign or fax this quote to 
CatapultK12. By signing this quote, you are committing to a contract from March 1, 2024 to February 28, 2027 for the summary of fees 
outlined above. Our business is committed to providing top-level customer service and support. To ensure adequate support staff, our 
software service contracts automatically renews on March 1st of each year after the end of the initial contract term. If Client wishes to 
discontinue software service, a cancellation notice must be sent via email to billing@catapultk12.com 30-days prior to the renewal date. If 
the cancellation notice is not received 30-days prior to the renewal date, Client will be responsible for paying for the entire 12 months of 
service, regardless of whether the service is used or not. Thank you for your understanding.

Payment Frequency Annually

Payment Terms Payment Due Net 30 from Receipt of Invoice 

Billing Contact Name  

Billing Contact Email  

Billing Address  

Billing Phone Number  

CUSTOMER

_______________________________________________
Signature

________________________________________________ 
Date

_______________________________________________ 
Name

________________________________________________ 
Title

https://www.catapultk12.com/terms-of-use/
https://www.wetip.com/terms-of-use/


























































































Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      March 20, 2024 Agenda Item:  232.479 
Consent Calendar (continued)- Items 
Removed For Later Consideration 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
The Board will have the opportunity to address any items that are moved from the consent 
calendar. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.480 
Board Consideration of Approval of Second 
Interim Budget Report For Fiscal Year  
2023-24 
 

Presenter: Alejandra Garibay Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  
 
 

This is the Second Interim Budget Report for the 2023-24 school year. It includes changes in 
revenue and expenditures since the First Interim Report was approved in December 2023. 
 
Revenue Increases: 

• IDEA Special Ed Increase - $88,611 
• One-time SELPA Allocation - $324,209 
• Medi-Cal - $50,000 
• One-time CalShape Grant - $255,400 
• Other Federal/Local Revenue updates 

 
Expenditure Increases: 

• Certificated, Classified and Unrepresented Benefits and Salary increases are included. 
• Supplies and Services 

 
Summary of Assumptions: 

• Average Daily Attendance (ADA) is reported for the current year and is FUNDED on the 
greater of the current, prior year, or an average of the prior 3 years ADA. 

 
 
The Governor’s May Budget workshop for 2024-25 will be viewed at the District Office on May 21, 
2024. 
 
 
Board approval is recommended.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



Second Interim
2023-24

March 2024
Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official



Formative Budget Process

� Unaudited Actuals 
� First Interim
� Second Interim: Reporting period from 

July 1-January 31, 2024.
� June Adopted Budget 



Second Interim Summary 2023-24

➢ COLA 8.22% in 23-24.
➢ PERS increased by 1.31% in 23-24.
➢ LCFF revenue is based on Funded ADA of 3,223.59.
➢ Average Daily Attendance is funded based on P-2. We currently are using P-2 of last year until 

current P-2 becomes available April.  

➢ Enrollment increase from 3,383 to 3,427 (44 students).
➢ Unduplicated Pupil Percentage increased to 61.24% in 23-24.
➢ Remaining ESSER funds expire in September 2024.
➢ Arts & Music School funds Prop 28 will have a decreases in funding in the upcoming year.
➢ Salary increases for all groups are included in the Multi-Year Projections (MYP).
➢ Committed funds in the MYP have been completed reduced after 23-24.
➢ MYP includes an additional $600k in reductions for 25-26 in order to maintain the 9% reserve.



Cost Of Living Adjustment  (COLA)

Year Increase

2023-2024 8.22%

2024-2025 2.00% .76%

2025-2026 3.29% 2.73%

~ It is important to note, that the COLA is designed simply to account for increased or inflated costs, and 
does not provide an increase in real spending capacity.



District Enrollment/Funded ADA

As of 1-31-2024 enrollment is at 3,427 for GJUESD. ADA will be updated based on P-2 in April 2024. 



Pension Rates

As of 1-31-2024 enrollment is at 3,427 for GJUESD. ADA will be updated based on P-2 in April 2024. 

Since the First Interim, the PERS projection has increased by 0.20%. It's important to note that this does not include other 
Statutory Benefits that the district is responsible to budget e.g., OASDI, Medicare, SUI, and Workers Comp.



Revenues – General Fund

Federal & State revenue includes one-time learning loss funds.

Total Combined Revenue 
$54,848,039



Expenditures – General Fund

Total Combined Expenditures (Unrestricted & Restricted): $60,946,938

*Includes one-time learning loss funds

Total Salaries and Benefits
$46,747,468

This is 77% of the 
District’s Budget



Unrestricted Reserve Levels
(Combined total of Committed/Assigned/Unassigned)

Unrestricted Reserve balance includes committed board approved items that were not expensed in the fiscal year 2022-23. 
After 2024-25, the district will no longer have committed funds.

Year Reserve

2023-2024 17.85% 15.46%

2024-2025 14.15% 10.80%

2025-2026 12.76% 11.01%



Economic Outlook

� The Legislative Analyst Office (LAO) projects the State Budget and Proposition 98 
deficits are likely to increase come May. Specifically, they anticipate that the 
Proposition 98 minimum guarantee could decrease by an additional $7.7 billion 
compared to the Governor’s Budget projections. Initially, in January, the 
Governor’s Budget had forecasted a $37.9 billion deficit, but this deficit has 
continue to grow over the past few months.

� To address the growing deficit, the LAO outlines several options available to the 
Governor:
� Utilize Proposition 98 reserves to allow K-12 schools to retain the cash resources provided 

by the state in the 2022-2023 fiscal year.

� Remove Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for the 2024-2025 fiscal year.

� Reject the majority of the Governor’s new spending proposals.

� Adjust existing program policies, such as ELOP and Title programs, to reduce spending.

� Reallocate some unallocated education funds to mitigate the deficit.



Final Synopsis of First Interim 2023-24

➢ Galt Joint Union Elementary School District has met all of its 
financial obligations with the support of one-time federal funds, 
state funds and the increase of COLA for 2023-24.

➢ The district continues to monitor enrollment and ADA. 
➢ Negotiations for 2023-24 are settled; CSEA/Unrepresented is pending 

board approval on 3-20-2024.
➢ Ensuring safe and secure learning environments continues to be a 

priority for our schools. This involves investments in the math 
adoption curriculum, security measures, facilities, and upgrades to 
ensure that students and staff can learn and work in a safe and 
supportive environment.





















































































































































































































































































































 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.481 
Board Consideration of Approval of 
GJUESD 2023-24 Transportation Plan  

Presenter: Alejandra Garibay Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  
 
 

The 2022 Enacted State Budget created a transportation allowance, effective 2023-24, equal to 
60 percent of the home-to-school transportation expenditures reported by the school district 
in the prior year reduced by the amount of the transportation add-on received through the 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). 

 
Per Education Code 39800.1, as a condition of receiving apportionments under Education 
Code 41850.1, a school district shall develop a plan describing the transportation services as 
prescribed in the code. 
 
The school district’s governing board shall adopt the plan on or before April 1, 2023, and 
update it by April 1 each year thereafter. 

 
Board approval is recommended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 | www.galt.k12.ca.us 
 

 
2023-24 Transportation Plan 
 
The Galt Joint Union Elementary School District’s Transportation Plan is developed in accordance with Education 
Code 39800.1. 
 
A. Transportation Services Offered to Students: 

1. Home to School (HTS) (General and Special Education) 
- Special Education: Transportation is designed for special education students with exceptional 

needs as specified in their individualized education program (IEP). The IEP team will determine 
whether or not the student is eligible for transportation. 

- General Education: Per Regulation 3541: Transportation Routes and Services located in Board 
Policy; students shall be eligible for transportation services to and from school if the distance 
between their school established bus stop and the school is beyond the minimum listed below: 

- For elementary school students, Grades TK-6: One (1) mile  
- For students attending a middle school, Grades 7-8: Two (2) miles 

2. Field Trips 
3. Home transportation for students in the after-school learning loss prevention groups 

(Acceleration Blocks), for those students who already receive HTS transportation. 
4. Home transportation for students in the After School Education and Safety (ASES) program 

for those students who already receive HTS transportation. 
5. Expanded Learning Opportunities Programs  
6. Summer Programs, e.g., ESY 
7. The district shall replace its buses when deemed necessary in order to continue to provide 

general and special education transportation services.  When deemed feasible, the district 
shall replace its school buses with near-zero and zero-emission available options, and utilize 
grant funding to help mitigate the costs. 

 
B. Prioritizing Transportation for TK-6 Students: 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District is a PreK-8 school district. All of the bus routes pick up and drop off 
TK-8 students to our six elementary schools and one middle school who request transportation and meet the 
eligibility requirements in Section A1. 
 
The district does not charge students for transportation. When routing students, in the event there are not 
enough seats for all eligible students requesting transportation, students who qualify as Free or Reduced-price 
meals will have priority. Please note that free/reduced meal eligibility counts are based on: eligible alternate 
income forms submitted by parents / legal guardians; foster youth enrollment; homeless student enrollment; 
migrant education student enrollment; and students receiving Cal Fresh and CalWORKs benefits (i.e. direct 
certification).  
 
In times of driver shortage, the district contracts with outside transportation companies, when available, to 
provide additional bus drivers.  The district may also issue “Connect Transit Cards” (bus passes) for Galt City 
Transit Services when deemed necessary and appropriate. 



 
GJUESD 2023-24 Transportation Plan 
Pg. 2 

C. Prioritizing Transportation for Low Income Students: 
The district does not charge students for transportation. When routing students, in the event there are not 
enough seats for all eligible students requesting transportation, students who qualify as Free or Reduced-price 
meals will have priority. 
 
In times of driver shortage, the district contracts with outside transportation companies, when available, to 
provide additional bus drivers.  The district may also issue “Connect Transit Cards” (bus passes) for Galt City 
Transit Services when deemed necessary and appropriate. 
 

D. Additional Components: 
1. Transportation services accessible to students with disabilities and homeless children and youth, as 

defined pursuant to the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 

Special Education students: 
The district provides home to school transportation, bus aides, 1:1 bus aides as required by IEPs, 
transportation to Non-Public schools, and field trip transportation. 
 
Student experiencing homelessness: 
Students experiencing homelessness could require additional transportation needs other than a typical 
school bus route for many reasons based on where they are residing. Additional options to provide 
transportation for these students would include van or contractor transportation. 

 
2. How unduplicated pupils, as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 42238.02, are able to access available 

home-to-school transportation at no cost to the students. 
a. “Unduplicated” pupil means a pupil enrolled in a school district or a charter school who is either 

classified as an English learner, eligible for a free or reduced-price meal, or is a foster youth. 
 

The district does not charge students for transportation. When routing students, in the event there are 
not enough seats for all eligible students requesting transportation, students who qualify as an 
unduplicated pupil will have priority. 
 
In times of driver shortage, the district contracts with outside transportation companies, when available, 
to provide additional bus drivers.  The district may also issue “Connect Transit Cards” (bus passes) for 
Galt City Transit Services when deemed necessary and appropriate. 

 
3.  The transportation plan must be developed in consultation with classified staff, teachers, school 

administrators, regional local transit authorities, local air pollution control districts and air quality 
management districts, parents, pupils, and other stakeholders. During the renewal of the transportation 
plan, the district consulted with the following groups in order to receive additional meaningful input: 
• Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District: March 7, 2024 
• Galt City Transit / Storer Transportation: March 7, 2024 
• District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC): February 8, 2024 
• District Advisory Council (DAC): February 8, 2024 
• Administration: January 2024 
• Transportation Administration: January 2024 
• Galt Schools Transportation Committee: March 5, 2024 

 
 
Board Approved: March 20, 2024 
Last Updated (review annually): April 1, 2023 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.482 
Board Consideration of Approval of Resolution 
No. 15 Calling the Presidential General 
Election [Galt Joint Union Elementary School 
District Request to Consolidate the Regularly 
Scheduled Presidential Election on November 
5, 2024, and Nomination of Candidates for the 
Governing Body] 
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  
 

 
The GJUESD will hold an election to nominate candidates for the governing body on the same date 
as the November 5, 2024 Presidential General Election. Pursuant to Education Code §5322, the 
District is required to file a resolution requesting consolidation and setting forth the exact form of 
any question(s) or office(s) to be voted upon at such election. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 15 

CALLING PRESIDENTIAL GENERAL ELECTION 
 
 

WHEREAS, an election will be held within the Galt Joint Union Elementary District that will affect 
Sacramento and San Joaquin Counties on November 5, 2024, for the purpose of electing two (2) 
Board of Trustees Members; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Presidential General Election will be held within the County of Sacramento on the 
same day; and 
 
WHEREAS, when ordering an election, Education Code section 5322 requires the Board to 
provide for specifications of the election order, which shall be delivered to the officer conducting 
the election not less than 123 days prior to the date set for the election; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District requests the 
Board of Supervisors of Sacramento County to consolidate the regularly scheduled Presidential 
General Election on November 5, 2024; and 
 
NOMINATION OF CANDIDATES FOR THE GOVERNING BODY 
 

1. Said election shall be to fill a vacancy for the following Board Member(s) who resigned 
and/or whose term(s) expired: 

Incumbent’s Name Area Number Regular/Short Term 
Traci Skinner 4 Regular 
Casey Raboy 3 Regular 

 
2. Said Governing board members for this District are elected in the following manner: 

 
_____ At Large 
There are no divisions in the district; all voters in the district vote for all candidates. 
 

  __X__ By District, Division, or Trustee Area 
  The candidates are qualified and elected by trustee area. 
 

3. For the publication of the candidate’s statement, pursuant to Elections Code §13307. The 
limitation on the number of words that a candidate may use in their candidate’s 
statement shall not exceed two hundred (200) words; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the cost of the Candidate Statement shall be paid by the candidate 
at the Sacramento County Voter Registration and Elections Office. If the District is shared, 
candidate(s) shall pay at their respective election’s office. 



 
• In the case of a tie vote, the election shall be determined by LOT. Education Code §5016. 
• The district hereby certifies that there have been NO District Boundary changes since our 

last election. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the district agrees to reimburse the Registrar of Voters for actual 
costs accrued, such costs to be calculated by the method set forth in the County’s current Election 
Fee Schedule. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District requests the 
Board of Supervisors of Sacramento County consolidate the regularly scheduled District Election 
with the Presidential General Election to be held on November 5, 2024; and 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the following vote on March 20, 2024. 
 

YES Votes 

____________ 
(Number) 

NO Votes 

__________ 
(Number) 

ABSENT 

______________ 
(Number) 

ABSTAIN 

______________ 
(Number) 

 
ATTEST:  
 

           
____________________________________ 

 Traci Skinner, Board President 
   

 
     ____________________________________ 

 Lois Yount, Superintendent 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.483 
Board Consideration of Approval of Tentative 
Agreement Between the California School 
Employees Association and its Galt Chapter 
#362 (CSEA) and the Galt Joint Union 
Elementary School District Regarding: 
• Article IX: Leaves 
• Article XIII: Layoff & Re-employment 
• Article XVIII: Professional Growth Program 
• Article XIX: Fringe Benefits 
• Article XX: Wages 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  

 
CSEA and the District have reached a tentative agreement regarding Article XX Wages and related items for 2023-2024. 
 
Adjustments within Article XX: Wages, are as follows: 

1. All represented CSEA salary schedules shall be increased by 4% to be retroactive to July 1, 2023. 
2. All represented CSEA employees shall receive a one-time off-schedule bonus of 1%, retroactive to July 1, 2023. 
3. Retroactive to July 1, 2023 longevity will increase as follows:  

a. After 10 consecutive years of service - $850 
b. After 15 consecutive years of service- $1,350 
c. After 20 consecutive years of service- $2,200 
d. After 25 consecutive years of service- $2,700 

4. Retroactive to July 1, 2023 degree stipends will increase as follows:  
a. Associate’s Degree - $500 
b. Bachelor’s Degree - $1,000 
c. Master’s Degree - $2,000 

5. Retroactive to July 1, 2023 the following job classifications will have a range increase as follows: 
a. Health Secretary - Range V 
b. Personnel Technician - Range W  
c. Warehouse Worker/Delivery Driver - Range T 

 
Adjustments within Article XIX: Fringe Benefits, are as follows: 

1. Increase of $150.00 monthly to the health cap from $900.00 to $1,050.00, to be effective on the March 31, 2024 payroll 
for April benefits. 

 
Changes in contract language for the following Articles:  

1. Article IX - Leaves  
2. Article XIII - Layoff & Re-employment  
3. Article XVIII - Professional Growth Program  

 
This agreement has been reviewed by the Sacramento County Office of Education fiscal team and ratified by CSEA. 

 
Fiscal impact:  
• $691,176 ongoing increase 
• $127,925 one-time payment 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 





71 

 

APPENDIX A 
          2023-2024 

 
CLASSES/POSITIONS RANGE 

District Personnel  
Accounts Payable Clerk AA 
Accounts Receivable Clerk AA 
District Office Clerk II U 
Fiscal Analyst DD 
Information Systems Technician W 
Payroll Technician AA 
Personnel Technician U W 
Purchasing Technician AA 
Technology Assistant W 
Food Service  
Food and Nutrition Cashier J 
Food and Nutrition District Clerk U 
Food and Nutrition Lead R 
Food and Nutrition Assistant I J 
Food and Nutrition Assistant II N 
Health  
Health Assistant II R 
Health Secretary T V 
Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN) CC 
Library  
Bright Futures Center Technician P 
Maintenance/Operations  
Custodian R 
Groundskeeper S 
Skilled Maintenance Technician CC 
Warehouse Worker/Delivery Driver Q T 
School Site Clerical  
Bilingual Office Assistant M 
Bilingual Office Assistant, Special Programs N 
School Secretary I R 
School Secretary II V 
Student Support  
Bilingual Community Outreach Assistant M 
Bilingual Community Outreach Assistant – Special Programs O 
Bilingual Instructional Assistant/Expanded Learning K 
Early Childhood Home Visitor J 
Instructional Assistant J 
Instructional Assistant/Behavior Management N 



72 

 

Instructional Assistant/Bilingual K 
Instructional Assistant/Expanded Learning J 
Instructional Assistant/Preschool J 
Instructional Assistant/Special Education L 
Registered Behavior Technician P 
Speech-Language Pathologist Assistant (SLPA) CC 
Transportation  
Dispatcher AA 
Mechanic CC 
School Bus Driver Y 
Trainer/Dispatcher BB 
Transportation Department Clerk R 
Student Supervision  
Yard Supervisor Yard Schedule 
  
  
  
  
Inactive Positions  
Budget Technician AA 
Bus Driver Instructor X 
Business Services Clerk Q 
Campus Monitor Lead Q 
Central Office Clerk L 
Crossing Guards Yard Schedule 
Curriculum Clerk U 
District Office Clerk I Q 
Educational Interpreter L 
Family Advocate J 
Health Assistant I K 
Instructional Assistant/Health J 
Instructional Assistant/Physical Education J 
Instructional Assistant/Title 1 J 
Library Technician N 
Mathematics Technician J 
Office Assistant K 
Parent Liaison J 
Prevention Specialist L 
Personnel Clerk Q 
Receptionist/Clerk M 

 
 
 
 



Pending Board Approval March 20, 2024

GALT JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MONTHLY HEALTH CAP

CLASSIFIED SALARY 
HOURLY WAGE SCHEDULE

2023-2024

RANGE STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6
J 16.85 17.44 18.33 19.25 20.23 20.73
K 17.28 17.88 18.78 19.74 20.73 21.25
L 17.71 18.33 19.25 20.23 21.25 21.78
M 18.15 18.78 19.74 20.73 21.78 22.33
N 18.60 19.25 20.23 21.25 22.33 22.89
O 19.07 19.74 20.73 21.78 22.89 23.46
P 19.55 20.23 21.25 22.33 23.46 24.05
Q 20.03 20.73 21.78 22.89 24.05 24.65
R 20.53 21.25 22.33 23.46 24.65 25.26
S 21.05 21.78 22.89 24.05 25.26 25.90
T 21.57 22.33 23.46 24.65 25.90 26.54
U 22.11 22.89 24.05 25.26 26.54 27.21
V 22.67 23.46 24.65 25.90 27.21 27.89
W 23.23 24.05 25.26 26.54 27.87 28.57
X 23.81 24.65 25.90 27.21 28.57 29.28
Y 24.41 25.26 26.54 27.87 29.28 30.01
Z 25.02 25.90 27.21 28.57 30.01 30.76

AA 25.64 26.54 27.87 29.28 30.76 31.53
BB 26.29 27.21 28.57 30.01 31.53 32.32

CC 26.80 27.74 29.12 30.58 32.11 33.72
DD 27.32 28.28 29.69 31.18 32.73 34.37

Salary Increase 4.0% Effective July 1, 2023

Associate's Degree 
Bachelor's Degree
Master's Degree

$500
$1,000
$2,000

LONGEVITY:   
10 years $850
15 years $1,350
20 years $2,200
25 years $2,700

$1,050 Effective April 1, 2024

Beginning in 2022, annualy "Declaration of Intent to Complete Units" must be submitted 
to district by Feb 15th. Current Degrees must submit official transcripts by Sept 1st of the 
declaration year.

4% Increase effective 7/1/2023

1.0% One time Bonus effective 7/1/23







12 

 

ARTICLE IX 
LEAVES 

A. Bereavement 
 
 1. In the event of an immediate family member’s death, an employee will be entitled to  
  three (3) days paid leave. In the event of an immediate family member’s death, an  
  employee will be entitled to five (5) days bereavement leave with pay.  Such leave  
  is not deducted from any other leave.  The employee shall notify the District as  
  soon as possible before taking such leave. 

 
b. If required travel out of state or more than four hundred (400) miles one (1) way 

is necessary, an employee will be entitled to two (2) additional days up to a 
maximum of five (5) days paid leave. 

 
2. Immediate family means mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild of the 

employee or of the spouse of the employee, and the spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, 
daughter-in-law, brother, sister, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew 
of employee, or any relative living in the immediate household of the employee.  
Members of the immediate family for the purposes of this agreement shall mean 
the spouse or domestic partner, parent, parent-in-law, foster parent, grandparent, 
grandparent-in-law, great-grandparent, child, child-in-law, stepchild, foster child, 
grandchild, grandchildren-in-law, sibling, sibling-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, 
nephew, CFRA-designated individual, or any person living in the immediate 
household of the employee. 
 

B. Jury Leave 
 
 1. An employee will be authorized paid leave time if required to serve on jury duty during  
  their normal assignment. 
 

2. Effective July 1, 2002, employees who work evening shifts who are called to jury duty 
shall be considered temporarily transferred to a Monday through Friday day shift when 
actually required to report for jury duty. 

 
3. Employees authorized this leave shall be paid the difference between regular earnings 

and any amount received for jury fees. 
 
C. Court Leave 
 
 1. a. An employee will be authorized paid leave time, for District related matters, if  

ordered to appear as a witness in court or to respond to an official order from 
another government agency/jurisdiction. 
 



13 

 

b. This leave shall not be authorized for an employee to appear/respond as a 
litigant or for reasons of any employee misconduct 

 
2. Employees authorized this leave shall be paid the difference between regular earnings  

  and any amount received for witness/responding fees. 
 
B. Jury Duty and Court Witnesses 
 
 1. Employees shall receive paid leave as follows: 
  a. To appear as a witness in court, other than as a litigant, pursuant to a  
   judicial order or subpoena. 

b. To comply with a summons for jury duty. 
c. To respond to an official order from a governmental jurisdiction for 

reasons not brought about by the misconduct of the employee. 
 

2. Employees authorized to take this leave shall be paid the difference between their 
  regular earnings and any amount received for jury fees, witness fees or court  
  fees. 

3. Employees who work evening shifts who are called to jury duty shall be   
  considered temporarily transferred to a Monday through Friday day shift when  
  actually required to report for jury duty. 

4. Employees may be asked to present proof of jury duty service to Human   
  Resources such as the Jury clerk slip or summons; otherwise, the absence will  
  be recorded as personal necessity.  If a unit member has exhausted personal  
  necessity leave, the unit member will receive unpaid leave for lack of official jury  
  duty documentation. 

 
D. C. Sick Leave 

 
1. An employee assigned to a regular full-time position accrues sick leave at the rate of 

one (1) day for each month of service.  An employee assigned to a regular part-time 
position accrues sick leave on a pro-rated basis.  Upon initial employment, an employee 
is credited with the sick leave that he would normally accrue during the first six (6) 
months of service.  At the end of the six (6) month probationary period, the employee 
will be credited with the remaining days to be earned during the first year of 
employment. 

 
2. In order to receive compensation while absent on sick leave, the employee must notify 

the District as soon as the absence is known. 
 
3. Sick leave does not accrue during periods of absence without pay that are over two (2) 

weeks, but does accrue during all periods of leave with pay. 
 
4. 3. Verification by a doctor may be required after an absence of five (5) consecutive 

working days. 



14 

 

 
5. 4. The District reserves the right to require medical verification of illness for shorter periods 

of time. 
 
6. Immediately upon return to work after such absence, the employee shall fill out the 

appropriate form for reporting such absence and file it with the business office. 
 
7. 5. Any sick leave benefits earned, but unused on the date of termination of an employee 

who is retiring, shall have this unused sick leave converted to retirement credit in 
accordance with Government Code 20962.5. Unused sick leave will be reported to 
CalPERS in accordance with the law on the date of termination of an employee 
who is retiring. Government Code 20963.5. 

 
8. 6. Sick leave may be used for the catastrophic illness of a family member upon exhaustion 

of personal necessity leave.  Family member is defined in Appendix D, Sick Leave 
Support System, and Section C. Family members under the law for CFRA include 
child, spouse, domestic partner, parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, 
sibling, or someone else related by blood or in a family-like relationship 
(“designated person”) with a serious health condition. 

 
9. The District shall provide all bargaining unit members a quarterly report on accrued sick 

leave and vacation. 
 
E. D. Personal Necessity Leave/Personal Business Leave 
 

1. An employee may use his/her accumulated sick leave in cases of personal necessity.   
 
2. The employee may be required to furnish additional documentation, if the supervisor 

suspects abuse, misuse or a pattern in absenteeism. 
 
3. An employee may use personal necessity to care for family illnesses. 
 
4. Reasons which shall be considered as personal necessities are the following.  (Prior 

notice shall be required before taking the leave), except in unforeseen circumstances. 
 
 a. Death of a relative or close friend. 
 

b. Accident involving his/her person or property, or the person or property of a 
member of the immediate family of such emergency nature that the immediate 
presence of the employee is required during his/her workday. 

 
c. Appearance in court as a litigant, party or witness under subpoena. 
 



15 

 

d. Serious or critical illness of a member of the immediate family calling for services 
of a physician, and of such an emergency nature that the presence of the 
employee is required during his/her workday. 

 
e. Doctor’s visits. 
 
f. Other reasons approved by the employee’s principal/supervisor. 

 
F. E. Personal Reason Leave  
 

1. An employee may elect to use two (2) days of his/her accumulated sick leave, per year, 
for personal reasons. 

 
2. Personal Reason Leave requires at least one (1) workday written notice to the site 

supervisor, except in unforeseen or unavoidable situations. 
 
3. Personal Reason Leave may not be used in the following situations: 
 

a. Shall not be taken on the day before/after a holiday or to extend a vacation or 
recess period. 

  
b. Shall not be used to engage in any activities related to a work stoppage. 

  
c. Shall not be used to seek or engage in other employment. 

 
G. F. Extended Illness Leave 
 

1. If an employee is absent from duty because of their own illness or accident for a period 
of five (5) months or less, the amount deducted from his/her salary during the absence 
shall not exceed the cost of a substitute. 
 

2. If a substitute is not employed while an employee is on extended illness leave, the 
bargaining unit member shall be entitled to their regular salary for all hours not worked 
by the substitute. 

 
3. The five (5) month period begins on the first day of illness. 
 
4. The differential pay commences after entitlement to all earned sick leave, comp time, 

vacation, and all available paid leave has been exhausted. 
 
H. G. Industrial Accident or Illness Leave 
 

1. An employee shall receive sixty (60) working days of leave with pay in any one fiscal 
year for an industrial accident or illness which is defined as one where the employee 
becomes ill or is injured while he/she is serving the District and the accident or illness is 



16 

 

reported to the State Compensation Insurance Fund in accordance with their 
regulations, and the State Compensation Insurance Fund accepts responsibility for the 
treatment of the employee. 

 
2. Allowable leave shall not accumulate from year to year. 
 
3. Industrial accident or illness leave will commence on the first day of absence. 
 
4. Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to an award granted the 

employee under the workers’ compensation laws of this State, exceed the normal wage 
for the day. 

 
5. Industrial accident leave will be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized 

absence regardless of a compensation award made under workers’ compensation. 
 
6. When an industrial accident or illness occurs at a time when the full sixty (60) days will 

overlap into the next fiscal year, the employee shall be entitled to only that amount 
remaining at the end of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred for the 
same illness or injury. 

 
7. The industrial accident or illness leave of absence is to be used in lieu of sick leave.  

When entitlement to industrial accident or illness leave has been exhausted, entitlement 
to other sick leave will then be used; but if an employee is receiving workers’ 
compensation, he/she shall be entitled to use only so much of his accumulated sick  
leave or available sick leave, accumulated compensatory time, vacation or other 
available leave which, when added to the workers’ compensation award, provide for a 
full day’s wage or salary.  

  
 

8. During all paid leaves of absence, whether industrial accident leave as provided in this  
section, sick leave, vacation, compensatory time or other available leave provided by 
law, the employee shall endorse to the District wage loss benefit checks received under  
the workers’ compensation laws of this State.  The District, in turn, shall issue the 
employee appropriate warrants for payment of wages or salary and shall deduct normal 
retirement and other authorized contributions.  Reduction or entitlement to leave shall 
be made only in accordance with this section. 
 

9. Any employee receiving benefits provided in this section shall during the periods of 
injury or illness, remain within the State of California unless the Superintendent 
authorizes travel outside the state. 

 
10. The Superintendent, or designee, shall require certification by the attending physician 

that the employee is medically able to return to and perform the duties of his/her 
position. 

 



17 

 

11. An accident report shall be filed with the business office within 24 hours after the 
occurrence of the accident. 

 
I. H. Maternity Leave Leave for Pregnancy Disability 
 

1. An employee may use sick leave for disabilities caused by pregnancy, miscarriage, 
and/or childbirth of the employee or employee’s spouse.  

 
2. The necessity for use of this leave, including the estimated dates on which the period of 

disability shall begin and end shall be verified in writing by the employee’s or spouse’s 
doctor. 

 
3. If that doctor determines that the estimated dates need to be changed, the employee 

will provide the doctor’s written verification to the District as soon as possible. 
 
4. The employee shall provide the District written notice of intent to use this leave sixty 

(60) calendar days prior to the beginning of the disability period, except in unforeseen or 
unavoidable situations. 

1.  Classified employees are entitled to use leaves of absence for illness or injury as set 
forth in this contract for disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, 
child birth, and recovery there from on the same terms and conditions governing leaves 
of absence from other illness or medical disability or as required by state law. 

 
2.   Such leaves shall not be used for child care, child rearing, or preparation for 

child bearing, but shall be limited to those disabilities as set forth above. 
   
3.  The length of such disability leave, including the date on which the leave 

shall commence and the date on which the duties are to be resumed, shall be 
determined by the unit member and the unit member’s physician.  

4.   The unit member on leave for pregnancy disability shall be entitled to return to 
a position comparable to that held at the time the leave commenced. 

 
 
 
J. I. Parental Leave 
 

The Board may grant an unpaid parental leave, not to exceed one (1) year, to an employee for 
child rearing.  Terms, such as beginning/ending dates and length of leave, shall be mutually 
developed by the employee and the administration. 
1. Classified employees shall be entitled to up to 12 weeks of child bonding leave 
 pursuant to section 45196.1 of the Education Code subject to the eligibility 
 requirements set forth in the law and implementing regulations.  Once all sick 
 leave is exhausted, the unit member shall be paid at a rate of 50 percent of his or 
 her regular salary for the remainder of the 12 weeks. 
   



18 

 

2.  The 12 weeks of parental leave shall run concurrently with leave taken under 
 the California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”) for the same reason.   
 

J. Reproductive Loss Leave 
 
 Classified employees who have been employed for at least 30 days, will be entitled to 
 take up to 5 days of unpaid leave as a result of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, 
 miscarriage, stillbirth, or unsuccessful assisted reproduction.  This leave can be taken 
 following any related paid leaves; but must be taken within 3 months of the loss.  This 
 leave cannot exceed twenty (20) days in a twelve (12) month period if multiple loss 
 events occur. 
 
K. General Leave 
 

A request by an employee to be absent without pay from regular duties for reasons other than 
those covered by this agreement may be granted at the discretion of the Board.  Terms, such 
as beginning/ending dates and length of leave, shall be mutually developed by the employee 
and the Administration. 

 
L. Personal Absence Without Pay 
 

No leave for personal business or pleasure will normally be granted to classified employees 
during the regular school/fiscal year.  If any leave is approved by the Superintendent, full pay 
will be deducted from the employee’s salary for those days he/she is absent.  The deduction 
for this absence will be determined by the hourly rate of the absent employee. 

 
 
M. Family Care Leave 
 

The District and CSEA shall follow all Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family 
Rights Act (CFRA) guidelines. 

 
N. Military Leave 
 
 The rights of employees to military leave are as specified in the Military and Veteran’s Code. 
 Any unit member who enters the active Military Service of the United States or the State  
 of California shall have all the Military leave rights guaranteed under the Military and 
 Veterans Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



23 

 

ARTICLE XIII 
LAYOFF & RE-EMPLOYMENT 

 

A. 1. A layoff for the purpose of this Article shall be considered an involuntary separation of a  
  permanent or probationary classified employee from active service due to lack of funds  
  and/or lack of work.  Layoffs shall be implemented in accordance with Education Code 

 section 45117. 
 

2. “Layoff for lack of funds or layoff for lack of work” includes any voluntary reduction in 
hours of employment or assignment to a classification or grade lower than that in which 
the employee has permanence, voluntarily consented to by the employee, in order to 
avoid interruption of employment by layoff. 

 
3. In the event of a reduction in hours, the District and CSEA shall meet and negotiate 

upon the request of either party regarding the decision and effects of the reduction in 
hours. 

 
4. Layoffs shall be made on a District-wide basis, and in reverse order of seniority in the 

classification in which the layoff occurs. 
 
5. a. Seniority shall be determined by date of hire within each classification plus 

 higher classifications plus higher classes, shall be laid off first. 
 

b. Date of hire shall be that date on which an employee first rendered paid service 
in probationary/permanent status. 

 
c. Seniority shall be earned in each classification, plus higher classifications, in 

which the employee has rendered paid service. 
 
d. New employees hired on same date shall be ranked on the seniority list by lot. 
 

 6. An employee laid off in one (1) classification who previously gained permanent status in  
a higher, equal or lower classification may bump into that classification may bump back 
into their former classification provided his/her seniority is greater than the employee 
being displaced unless higher classification is a classification from which the employee 
was involuntarily demoted under AR4218. 
 

 7. An employee displaced as a result of being bumped shall have the same bumping rights  
  as stated in paragraph five (5) above and other rights granted in this article. 
 
 8. An employee who elects separation in lieu of either bumping or assignment into a lower   
  classification shall maintain his/her reemployment rights as defined in this article. 
 



24 

 

 
9. a. A permanent or probationary employee who is to be laid off, shall be offered any 

temporary (substitute or short term) position available at that time for which the  
employee is qualified.  Reemployment rights shall not be affected. 
 

b. A permanent or probationary employee who is on the re-employment list will be 
given first consideration, before non-bargaining unit employees, for any 
substitute or short-term position available. 

 
10. Before a layoff occurs, the District shall develop a seniority list which shall be made 

available to CSEA and the employees who are to be laid off. 
 
11. Classification is defined as any position with a designated title and job description. 
 

B. 1. Except as set forth in paragraph 3 below, the Board of Education shall initiate layoffs by 
 Board resolution adopted no later than March 15th of each school year. 

 
 2. Employees to be laid off, pursuant to paragraph one (1) above, shall be notified no later  
  than March 15th by certified/registered mail sent to the most recent address provided to  
  the District by the employee. 
 
 3. In accordance with Education Code §45117(g), when, as a result of the expiration of a  
  specially funded program, classified unit positions are going to be eliminated at the end  
  of the school year, and unit member(s) will be subject to layoff for lack of funds, the unit  
  members to be laid off the end of such program shall be given written notice of not  
  less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the layoff.  If the termination date  
  of any specially funded program is other than June 30, such notice shall be given not  
  less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of layoff. 

 
4. For paragraph 3 above, layoffs, the notice shall be deposited in the U.S. Mail no less 

than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff.  A list of employees 
to be laid off shall be made to the CSEA President. 

 
5. All such notices pursuant to paragraph 1, 2, or 3, above, shall contain the effective date 

of layoff, displacement rights, if any, and reemployment rights. 
 
C. 1. Employees who have been laid off shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period of  
  thirty-nine (39) months. 
 
 2. Employees who elect fewer hours, or assignment to a lower classification, shall be  
  maintained on the reemployment list for an additional twenty-four (24) months, for a  

total of sixty-three (63) months. 
 
 3. Offers of reemployment shall be made in reverse order of layoff, within classification, as  
  vacancies occur. 



25 

 

 4. An employee who has voluntarily consented to fewer hours in paid status in order to  
avoid separation from active service shall be placed on the reemployment list and shall 
be offered, by seniority, the opportunity to return to a position in his/her former 
classification with the number of assigned hours at time of layoff or to a position with 
increased assigned time, at his/her option, as vacancies become available. 

 
5. An employee bumping into a lower classification position shall be offered, by seniority,  

  reinstatement to his/her former classification into a position with equal or more hours, at  
  his/her former classification into a position with equal or more hours, at his/her option,  
  as vacancies become available. 
 
 6. Individuals on the reemployment list have either: 
 

a. three (3) days to respond to a verbal offer of reemployment which, if refused, will 
be followed by written verification of the refusal, or  

 
b. five (5) days to respond to a written offer sent by certified/registered mail, 

beginning the day deposited in the U.S. Mail to the most recent address supplied 
to the District by the employee. 

 
 7. A permanent or probationary employee who is laid off and is subsequently reemployed  
  shall retain seniority earned prior to the effective date of the layoff. 
 
D. 1. Sick leave earned and unused at the time of separation from employment shall be  
  restored upon being reemployed. 
 
 2. Sick leave credit earned at one (1) rate while in an employed status and unused at the  

time the hours in paid status are reduced, shall not change if the employee 
subsequently is assigned fewer hours. 
 

 3. Employees laid off while on paid leave shall retain their employee benefits until the  
  effective date of layoff.  
 

4. a. Vacation time earned and unused at the time of layoff shall be paid off with the 
   employee’s final salary warrant. 
 
  b. Twelve (12) month employees accepting reduction of hours shall be paid the  
   difference between their current earned vacation and what would have been  
   earned in a reduced-hour assignment. 
 

5. For computation of credit toward longevity pay rate and additional vacation, time  
 separated and on a reemployment, list shall not be counted.  However, credit for  

these purposes earned prior to separation will be restored upon reemployment. 
 
 6. The District will continue to provide the current health, dental and vision insurance  



26 

 

  coverage for one (1) month following the employee’s final scheduled day of service. 
 
E. If an employee feels that he/she was improperly laid off, the employee shall meet directly with 
 the Superintendent to discuss the employee’s complaint.  If the complaint is valid, the  
 employee shall be reinstated to his/her former position. 
 Under provisions of section 45117 of the Education Code a laid off employee may 
 request a hearing to determine if there is cause for not reemploying the employee for 
 the ensuing school year.  A request for a hearing must be in writing and must be 
 received by the Human Resources Department within seven (7) days of the date of the 
 layoff notice.  Failure to do so shall constitute a waiver of the right to a hearing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



38 

 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 
PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PROGRAM 

 

A. Purpose of Program 
 

 1. The Professional Growth Program is designed to improve the job  
 performance of classified employees and to provide training to gain new 
 skills, abilities and education that enhance career development. 
 

B. Professional Growth Incentive Plan 
 
1. The District shall offer all unit members a professional growth incentive 
 plan.  The plan shall provide incentive pay for unit members who attend 
 approved professional growth educational trainings and courses.  The plan shall 
 be voluntary. 
 

C. Eligibility 
 
1. All permanent or part-time classified employees are eligible to enter the Professional 

Growth Incentive Program. 
 
D. Criteria for the Program 
 
 1. The studies can be related to present or future job considerations. 
 2. The studies shall be in skilled areas of technical, academic, communications, 
  interpersonal/personal growth, safety/first aid and inservice training. 
 3. Credit can be earned in college courses, including on-line courses, business courses,  
  adult education, seminars, conferences, correspondence course, trade schools and  
  CSEA leadership trainings. 
 4. College coursework, including online courses, must be verified and taken   
  through an accredited institution, (i.e., Western Interstate Commission for Higher  
  Education), an official transcript, unit or hours, and completion date. 
 4. 5. Only one correspondence course shall be approved toward the 15 units  
  requirement. 
 5. 6. Courses must be completed to receive credit, with a passing grade of a  
  “C” or better. 
 
E. The point system will be used to determine if a unit member will receive an award/bonus.  To 
 qualify for Professional Growth Incentive Award, the unit member must complete 15 units.  
 This will be set in terms of college units or its equivalent.  Quarter units will be prorated to 
 semester units.  In the case of non-unit studies, hours will be used to determine units.  The 
 standard of 15 hours of participation will equal one unit. 



39 

 

 
F. Courses may be counted one time only for professional growth credit.  Courses in  
 progress at the end of one fiscal year may be carried over to another year. 
 
G. Unit members completing a professional growth plan shall receive a one time 

award/bonus of 5% of their annual salary, during the declaration year.  Limited to 4 times 
maximum. 

 
H. A Declaration of Intent to complete the units must be submitted to the District by  
 February 15th, prior to the year in which an award/bonus will be paid. 
  
I. No more than one Professional Growth Incentive Award will be granted in any 
 year. 
 
J. In order to obtain credit for approved completed coursework unit members need to 
 submit (1) one of the following, by September 1st of the declaration year: 
 1. Official transcripts 
 2. Certificate verifying the number of hours completed, including dates of attendance. 
  
K. Unit members interested in taking advantage of the program must obtain prior  
 approval from their supervisor and the Superintendent/Designee.  Employees desiring  
 approval for such coursework shall submit a completed course approval form to their 
 supervisor at least (15) calendar days prior to when the class begins.  Employees taking 
 classes for unit credit without prior approval have no assurance that approval will be 
 granted. 
 
L. If a unit member voluntarily terminates employment with the District for any  
 reason and is subsequently reemployed, he or she shall not be entitled to  

professional Growth Incentive Awards that total more than a maximum of four awards during 
all years of employment. 

 
M. Unit members returned to employment following a layoff or return employment pursuant to 

Education Code sections 45192 or 45195 (rehire following disability) shall be entitled 
to reinstatement of all earned professional growth increments. 
 

N. Professional growth activities occurring prior to an employee’s beginning 
employment/reemployment with the District shall not be credited in this program. 

 
O. Effective 2021-2022 school year, unit members will be recognized for the college degree 

completion with an ongoing annual stipend of $250 Associate’s Degree, increasing to $500 for 
a Bachelor’s Degree and increased to $1,000 for a Master’s Degree.  Beginning in 2022, 
annually “Declaration of Intent to Complete Units” must be submitted to district by February 
15th. Classified staff with current degrees must submit official transcripts by September 1st of 
the declaration year.  Effective 2023-2024 school year, upon completing a degree 
(Associates, Bachelor’s and Master’s) the unit member will receive the ongoing 



40 

 

corresponding degree stipend in-lieu of the professional growth.  Upon completion of 
the Associate Degree the ongoing annual stipend is $500, increasing to $1,000 for a 
Bachelor’s Degree and increasing to $2,000 for a Master’s Degree.  The listed degrees 
are on an annual basis and are prorated according to the time of completion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 

 

ARTICLE XIX 
FRINGE BENEFITS 

 

The District and CSEA agree to continue negotiating to explore alternative health care 
providers. 
A. 1. Effective January 1, 2024 each full-time employee may elect one (1) of the 

 following health plan alternatives: 
One Party 

Plans WHA - High WHA - Low Sutter-High  Sutter - Low Kaiser- High  Kaiser - Mid Kaiser – Low  
Medical 833.80 622.65 976.20 898.80 924.95 848.49 593.74 
Dental/Ortho 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 
Vision 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 
$30,000 Life 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 
Totals 974.78 763.63 1117.18 1039.78 1065.93 989.47 734.72 
District Allowance 900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
Employee Share 0.00 0.00 67.18 0.00 15.93 0.00 0.00 

 
Two Party 

Plans WHA - High WHA - Low Sutter-High  Sutter - Low Kaiser- High  Kaiser - Mid Kaiser – Low  
Medical 1667.61 1245.31 1952.40 1797.70 1849.91 1696.98 1187.49 
Dental/Ortho 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 
Vision 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 
$30,000 Life 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 
Totals 1808.59 1386.29 2093.38 1938.68 1990.89 1837.96 1328.47 
District Allowance 900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
Employee Share 758.59 336.29 1043.38 888.68 940.89 787.96 278.47 

 
Family 

Plans WHA - High WHA - Low Sutter-High  Sutter - Low Kaiser- High  Kaiser - Mid Kaiser – Low  
Medical 2359.66 1762.11 2762.80 2543.90 2617.63 2401.23 1680.29 
Dental/Ortho 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 
Vision 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 
$30,000 Life 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 
Totals 2500.64 1903.09 2903.78 2684.88 2758.61 2542.21 1821.27 
District Allowance 900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
900.00 

1050.00 
Employee Share 1450.64 853.09 1853.78 1634.88 1708.61 1492.21 771.27 

  
2. Employees shall pay any premium amount above the District Allowance. 

 
B. 1. The parties agree to continue the 125 Plan, at no cost to the District or 



42 

 

  employees. 
 2. Cash-in-lieu of benefits ($150/month) is only available to classified employees hired  
  prior to June 30, 2006. 
 
 3. Classified employees receiving cash-in-lieu of benefits, who return to district 
  health care after June 30, 2006 will no longer be entitled to return to the  
  cash-in-lieu status. 
 
D. Effective December 1, 1988: 
 
 1. Full time employees who work eight (8) hours per day and at least ten (10) 
  months per year are eligible for full fringe benefit coverage. 
 
 2. Part time employees working four (4) hours or more per day and at least ten 
  (10) months per year are eligible for pro-rated fringe benefit coverage based  
  on an eight (8) hour work day. 
 
 3. Employees hired prior to the above date (12/1/88) and eligible for pro-rated 
  coverage based on a six (6) hour day, shall now have pro-rated coverage based  
  on an eight (8) hour day.  However, this shall be for purposes of increasing and  
  not decreasing their pro-rated coverage. 
 
 4. Benefits will continue for employees working less than four (4) hours per day 
  who were granted medical coverage prior to 10/1/84 and dental coverage prior 
  to 11/18/85. 
 
D. The District will provide paid medical insurance for employee only, upon retirement, 
 after twenty (20) consecutive years of service to the District from age sixty (60) until 
 age sixty-five (65).  To be eligible, an employee must be no less than 60 years of 
 age prior to the date of retirement. 
 
E. The District agrees to pay employee’s portion of State Disability Insurance on all 
 earnings. 
 
F. Both parties shall follow the rules and regulations of the carriers/administrators. 
 
G. Pursuant to COBRA, the District will permit eligible employees and their dependents 
 to remain in the District-offered health care plan at their own expense.  Arrangements 
 for advance payment shall be made with the Business Office. 

 
 
 
 
 



43 

ARTICLE XX 
WAGES 

A. 1. The District agrees to provide a one percent (1%) bonus for all bargaining unit 
employees during the 2019-2020 fiscal year. 

2. The new contract term shall be July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, effective July 1,
2019.

B. Longevity bonuses are effective July 1, 2017 July 1, 2023
1. A $750 $850 longevity bonus shall be paid to employees annually on July 1 after ten

(10) consecutive years of District service per each employee’s contract.

2. An additional $1,250 $1,350 longevity bonus shall be paid to employees annually on
July 1 after fifteen (15) consecutive years of District service per each employee’s
contract.

3. A $2,000 $2,200 longevity bonus shall be paid to all employees annually on July 1 after
twenty (20) consecutive years of District service per each employee’s contract.

4. A $2,500 $2,700 longevity bonus shall be paid to all employees annually on July 1 after
twenty-five (25) consecutive years of District service per each employee’s contract.

5. Beginning in 2009/10, eligible classified employees shall be given an option to
elect a one-time longevity payment in July or continue with an on-going payment over
the course of the year.

C. Employees must be in a paid status no less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the
previously scheduled (10/12 months) District work year to be eligible for any July 1st

step advance, earned vacation, and/or longevity bonus credit.

D. 1. CSEA and the District agree to implement the “PERS PICK UP” program 
effective March 1, 1996. 

2. There shall be no cost to the District except for normal payroll costs.

3. Both parties shall follow all procedures of PERS, County Office of Education,
IRS, and all other regulating agencies in implementing this program.

E. Salary comparability studies shall be designated to a committee comprised of two
(2) members of CSEA and two (2) District representatives.

F. Bilingual compensation in the amount of a two and a half percent (2.5%) stipend shall be
provided as per the provisions below:



44 

 

 
1. Only employees in the following classifications shall be eligible for the stipend: 

a. School Secretary I 
b. School Secretary II 
c. Health Assistant II 
d. Health Secretary 
e. District Office Clerk II 

 
2. Employees must work at the following sites to be eligible to received the stipend, however, 

each site shall be limited to the number of employees indicated below: 
a.  River Oaks Elementary 
     Three (3) employees 
b.  Lake Canyon Elementary 
      Three (3) employees 
c.   Marengo Ranch Elementary 
      One (1) employee 
d.  Valley Oaks Elementary 
      Two (2) employees 
e.   Vernon E. Greer Elementary 
      Two (2) employees 
f. Fairsite Preschool and Readiness Center 

One (1) employee 
g. District Office 

Two (2) employees 
 

G. The District agrees to participate in the CSESAP in fiscal years where the State allocates an 
 appropriation of funds in the annual Budget Act or another statute (Education Code §45500). 
 In participating years, District shall extend this benefit option to the bargaining unit. 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

12 

 

ARTICLE IX 

LEAVES 

A. Bereavement 

 

 1. a. In the event of an immediate family member’s death, an employee will be   

  entitled to three (3) days paid leave. 

 

b. If required travel out of state or more than four hundred (400) miles one (1) way 

is necessary, an employee will be entitled to two (2) additional days up to a 

maximum of five (5) days paid leave. 

 

2. Immediate family means mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild of the 

employee or of the spouse of the employee, and the spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, 

daughter-in-law, brother, sister, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew 

of employee, or any relative living in the immediate household of the employee. 

 

B. Jury Leave 

 

 1. An employee will be authorized paid leave time if required to serve on jury duty during  

  their normal assignment. 

 

2. Effective July 1, 2002, employees who work evening shifts who are called to jury duty 

shall be considered temporarily transferred to a Monday through Friday day shift when 

actually required to report for jury duty. 

 

3. Employees authorized this leave shall be paid the difference between regular earnings 

and any amount received for jury fees. 

 

C. Court Leave 

 

 1. a. An employee will be authorized paid leave time, for District related matters, if  

ordered to appear as a witness in court or to respond to an official order from 

another government agency/jurisdiction. 

 

b. This leave shall not be authorized for an employee to appear/respond as a 

litigant or for reasons of any employee misconduct 

 

2. Employees authorized this leave shall be paid the difference between regular earnings  

  and any amount received for witness/responding fees. 

 

 

Kbock
Highlight



 

13 

 

D. Sick Leave 

 

1. An employee assigned to a regular full-time position accrues sick leave at the rate of 

one (1) day for each month of service.  An employee assigned to a regular part-time 

position accrues sick leave on a pro-rated basis.  Upon initial employment, an employee 

is credited with the sick leave that he would normally accrue during the first six (6) 

months of service.  At the end of the six (6) month probationary period, the employee 

will be credited with the remaining days to be earned during the first year of 

employment. 

 

2. In order to receive compensation while absent on sick leave, the employee must notify 

the District as soon as the absence is known. 

 

3. Sick leave does not accrue during periods of absence without pay that are over two (2) 

weeks, but does accrue during all periods of leave with pay. 

 

4. Verification by a doctor may be required after an absence of five (5) consecutive 

working days. 

 

5. The District reserves the right to require medical verification of illness for shorter periods 

of time. 

 

6. Immediately upon return to work after such absence, the employee shall fill out the 

appropriate form for reporting such absence and file it with the business office. 

 

7. Any sick leave benefits earned, but unused on the date of termination of an employee 

who is retiring, shall have this unused sick leave converted to retirement credit in 

accordance with Government Code 20962.5. 

 

8. Sick leave may be used for the catastrophic illness of a family member upon exhaustion 

of personal necessity leave.  Family member is defined in Appendix D, Sick Leave 

Support System, and Section C. 

 

9. The District shall provide all bargaining unit members a quarterly report on accrued sick 

leave and vacation. 

 

E. Personal Necessity Leave/Personal Business Leave 

 

1. An employee may use his/her accumulated sick leave in cases of personal necessity.   

 

2. The employee may be required to furnish additional documentation, if the supervisor 

suspects abuse, misuse or a pattern in absenteeism. 



 

14 

 

3. An employee may use personal necessity to care for family illnesses. 

 

4. Reasons which shall be considered as personal necessities are the following.  (Prior 

notice shall be required before taking the leave), except in unforeseen circumstances. 

 

 a. Death of a relative or close friend. 

 

b. Accident involving his/her person or property, or the person or property of a 

member of the immediate family of such emergency nature that the immediate 

presence of the employee is required during his/her workday. 

 

c. Appearance in court as a litigant, party or witness under subpoena. 

 

d. Serious or critical illness of a member of the immediate family calling for services 

of a physician, and of such an emergency nature that the presence of the 

employee is required during his/her workday. 

 

e. Doctor’s visits. 

 

f. Other reasons approved by the employee’s principal/supervisor. 

 

F. Personal Reason Leave  

 

1. An employee may elect to use two (2) days of his/her accumulated sick leave, per year, 

for personal reasons. 

 

2. Personal Reason Leave requires at least one (1) workday written notice to the site 

supervisor, except in unforeseen or unavoidable situations. 

 

3. Personal Reason Leave may not be used in the following situations: 

 

a. Shall not be taken on the day before/after a holiday or recess period. 

  

b. Shall not be used to engage in any activities related to a work stoppage. 

  

c. Shall not be used to seek or engage in other employment. 

 

G. Extended Illness Leave 

 

1. If an employee is absent from duty because of illness or accident for a period of five (5) 

months or less, the amount deducted from his/her salary during the absence shall not 

exceed the cost of a substitute. 



 

15 

 

2. If a substitute is not employed while an employee is on extended illness leave, the 

bargaining unit member shall be entitled to their regular salary for all hours not worked 

by the substitute. 

 

3. The five (5) month period begins on the first day of illness. 

 

4. The differential pay commences after entitlement to all earned sick leave, comp time, 

vacation, and all available paid leave has been exhausted. 

 

H. Industrial Accident or Illness Leave 

 

1. An employee shall receive sixty (60) working days of leave with pay in any one fiscal 

year for an industrial accident or illness which is defined as one where the employee 

becomes ill or is injured while he/she is serving the District and the accident or illness is 

reported to the State Compensation Insurance Fund in accordance with their 

regulations, and the State Compensation Insurance Fund accepts responsibility for the 

treatment of the employee. 

 

2. Allowable leave shall not accumulate from year to year. 

 

3. Industrial accident or illness leave will commence on the first day of absence. 

 

4. Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to an award granted the 

employee under the workers’ compensation laws of this State, exceed the normal wage 

for the day. 

 

5. Industrial accident leave will be reduced by one (1) day for each day of authorized 

absence regardless of a compensation award made under workers’ compensation. 

 

6. When an industrial accident or illness occurs at a time when the full sixty (60) days will 

overlap into the next fiscal year, the employee shall be entitled to only that amount 

remaining at the end of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred for the 

same illness or injury. 

 

7. The industrial accident or illness leave of absence is to be used in lieu of sick leave.  

When entitlement to industrial accident or illness leave has been exhausted, entitlement 

to other sick leave will then be used; but if an employee is receiving workers’ 

compensation, he/she shall be entitled to use only so much of his accumulated sick  

leave or available sick leave, accumulated compensatory time, vacation or other 

available leave which, when added to the workers’ compensation award, provide for a 

full day’s wage or salary.  

  



 

16 

 

 

8. During all paid leaves of absence, whether industrial accident leave as provided in this  

section, sick leave, vacation, compensatory time or other available leave provided by 

law, the employee shall endorse to the District wage loss benefit checks received under  

the workers’ compensation laws of this State.  The District, in turn, shall issue the 

employee appropriate warrants for payment of wages or salary and shall deduct normal 

retirement and other authorized contributions.  Reduction or entitlement to leave shall 

be made only in accordance with this section. 

 

9. Any employee receiving benefits provided in this section shall during the periods of 

injury or illness, remain within the State of California unless the Superintendent 

authorizes travel outside the state. 

 

10. The Superintendent, or designee, shall require certification by the attending physician 

that the employee is medically able to return to and perform the duties of his/her 

position. 

 

11. An accident report shall be filed with the business office within 24 hours after the 

occurrence of the accident. 

 

I. Maternity Leave 

 

1. An employee may use sick leave for disabilities caused by pregnancy, miscarriage, 

and/or childbirth of the employee or employee’s spouse.  

 

2. The necessity for use of this leave, including the estimated dates on which the period of 

disability shall begin and end shall be verified in writing by the employee’s or spouse’s 

doctor. 

 

3. If that doctor determines that the estimated dates need to be changed, the employee 

will provide the doctor’s written verification to the District as soon as possible. 

 

4. The employee shall provide the District written notice of intent to use this leave sixty 

(60) calendar days prior to the beginning of the disability period, except in unforeseen or 

unavoidable situations. 

 

J. Parental Leave 

 

The Board may grant an unpaid parental leave, not to exceed one (1) year, to an employee for 

child rearing.  Terms, such as beginning/ending dates and length of leave, shall be mutually 

developed by the employee and the administration. 

 



 

17 

 

 

K. General Leave 

 

A request by an employee to be absent without pay from regular duties for reasons other than 

those covered by this agreement may be granted at the discretion of the Board.  Terms, such 

as beginning/ending dates and length of leave, shall be mutually developed by the employee 

and the Administration. 

 

L. Personal Absence Without Pay 

 

No leave for personal business or pleasure will normally be granted to classified employees 

during the regular school/fiscal year.  If any leave is approved by the Superintendent, full pay 

will be deducted from the employee’s salary for those days he/she is absent.  The deduction 

for this absence will be determined by the hourly rate of the absent employee. 

 

M. Family Care Leave 

 

The District and CSEA shall follow all Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family 

Rights Act (CFRA) guidelines. 

 

N. Military Leave 

 

 The rights of employees to military leave are as specified in the Military and Veteran’s Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

22 

 

ARTICLE XIII 

LAYOFF & RE-EMPLOYMENT 

 

A. 1. A layoff for the purpose of this Article shall be considered an involuntary separation of a  

  permanent or probationary classified employee from active service due to lack of funds  

  and/or lack of work.  Layoffs shall be implemented in accordance with Education Code 

 section 45117. 

 

2. “Layoff for lack of funds or layoff for lack of work” includes any voluntary reduction in 

hours of employment or assignment to a classification or grade lower than that in which 

the employee has permanence, voluntarily consented to by the employee, in order to 

avoid interruption of employment by layoff. 

 

3. In the event of a reduction in hours, the District and CSEA shall meet and negotiate 

upon the request of either party regarding the decision and effects of the reduction in 

hours. 

 

4. Layoffs shall be made on a District-wide basis, and in reverse order of seniority in the 

classification in which the layoff occurs. 

 

5. a. Seniority shall be determined by date of hire within each classification plus higher  

  classifications. 

 

b. Date of hire shall be that date on which an employee first rendered paid service 

in probationary/permanent status. 

 

c. Seniority shall be earned in each classification, plus higher classifications, in 

which the employee has rendered paid service. 

 

d. New employees hired on same date shall be ranked on the seniority list by lot. 

 

 6. An employee laid off in one (1) classification who previously gained permanent status in  

a higher, equal or lower classification may bump into that classification provided his/her 

seniority is greater than the employee being displaced unless higher classification 

is a classification from which the employee was involuntarily demoted under AR4218. 

 

 7. An employee displaced as a result of being bumped shall have the same bumping rights  

  as stated in paragraph five (5) above and other rights granted in this article. 

 

 8. An employee who elects separation in lieu of either bumping or assignment into a lower   

  classification shall maintain his/her reemployment rights as defined in this article. 

Kbock
Highlight



 

23 

 

 

 

9. a. A permanent or probationary employee who is to be laid off, shall be offered any 

temporary (substitute or short term) position available at that time for which the  

employee is qualified.  Reemployment rights shall not be affected. 

 

b. A permanent or probationary employee who is on the re-employment list will be 

given first consideration, before non-bargaining unit employees, for any 

substitute or short-term position available. 

 

10. Before a layoff occurs, the District shall develop a seniority list which shall be made 

available to CSEA and the employees who are to be laid off. 

 

11. Classification is defined as any position with a designated title and job description. 

 

B. 1. Except as set forth in paragraph 3 below, the Board of Education shall initiate layoffs by 

 Board resolution adopted no later than March 15th of each school year. 

 

 2. Employees to be laid off, pursuant to paragraph one (1) above, shall be notified no later  

  than March 15th by certified/registered mail sent to the most recent address provided to  

  the District by the employee. 

 

 3. In accordance with Education Code §45117(g), when, as a result of the expiration of a  

  specially funded program, classified unit positions are going to be eliminated at the end  

  of the school year, and unit member(s) will be subject to layoff for lack of funds, the unit  

  members to be laid off the end of such program shall be given written notice of not  

  less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the layoff.  If the termination date  

  of any specially funded program is other than June 30, such notice shall be given not  

  less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of layoff. 

 

4. For paragraph 3 above, layoffs, the notice shall be deposited in the U.S. Mail no less 

than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff.  A list of employees 

to be laid off shall be made to the CSEA President. 

 

5. All such notices pursuant to paragraph 1, 2, or 3, above, shall contain the effective date 

of layoff, displacement rights, if any, and reemployment rights. 

 

C. 1. Employees who have been laid off shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period of  

  thirty-nine (39) months. 

 

 2. Employees who elect fewer hours, or assignment to a lower classification, shall be  

  maintained on the reemployment list for an additional twenty-four (24) months, for a  



 

24 

 

total of sixty-three (63) months. 

 

 3. Offers of reemployment shall be made in reverse order of layoff, within classification, as  

  vacancies occur. 

 4. An employee who has voluntarily consented to fewer hours in paid status in order to  

avoid separation from active service shall be placed on the reemployment list and shall 

be offered, by seniority, the opportunity to return to a position in his/her former 

classification with the number of assigned hours at time of layoff or to a position with 

increased assigned time, at his/her option, as vacancies become available. 

 

5. An employee bumping into a lower classification position shall be offered, by seniority,  

  reinstatement to his/her former classification into a position with equal or more hours, at  

  his/her former classification into a position with equal or more hours, at his/her option,  

  as vacancies become available. 

 

 6. Individuals on the reemployment list have either: 

 

a. three (3) days to respond to a verbal offer of reemployment which, if refused, will 

be followed by written verification of the refusal, or  

 

b. five (5) days to respond to a written offer sent by certified/registered mail, 

beginning the day deposited in the U.S. Mail to the most recent address supplied 

to the District by the employee. 

 

 7. A permanent or probationary employee who is laid off and is subsequently reemployed  

  shall retain seniority earned prior to the effective date of the layoff. 

 

D. 1. Sick leave earned and unused at the time of separation from employment shall be  

  restored upon being reemployed. 

 

 2. Sick leave credit earned at one (1) rate while in an employed status and unused at the  

time the hours in paid status are reduced, shall not change if the employee 

subsequently is assigned fewer hours. 

 

 3. Employees laid off while on paid leave shall retain their employee benefits until the  

  effective date of layoff.  

 

4. a. Vacation time earned and unused at the time of layoff shall be paid off with the 

   employee’s final salary warrant. 

 

  b. Twelve (12) month employees accepting reduction of hours shall be paid the  

   difference between their current earned vacation and what would have been  



 

25 

 

   earned in a reduced-hour assignment. 

 

5. For computation of credit toward longevity pay rate and additional vacation, time  

 separated and on a reemployment, list shall not be counted.  However, credit for  

these purposes earned prior to separation will be restored upon reemployment. 

 

 6. The District will continue to provide the current health, dental and vision insurance  

  coverage for one (1) month following the employee’s final scheduled day of service. 

 

E. If an employee feels that he/she was improperly laid off, the employee shall meet directly with 

 the Superintendent to discuss the employee’s complaint.  If the complaint is valid, the  

 employee shall be reinstated to his/her former position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

37 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 

PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PROGRAM 

 

A. Purpose of Program 

 

 1. The Professional Growth Program is designed to improve the job  

 performance of classified employees and to provide training to gain new 

 skills, abilities and education that enhance career development. 

 

B. Professional Growth Incentive Plan 

 

1. The District shall offer all unit members a professional growth incentive 

 plan.  The plan shall provide incentive pay for unit members who attend 

 approved professional growth educational trainings and courses.  The plan shall 

 be voluntary. 

 

C. Eligibility 

 

1. All permanent or part-time classified employees are eligible to enter the Professional 

Growth Incentive Program. 

 

D. Criteria for the Program 

 

 1. The studies can be related to present or future job considerations. 

 2. The studies shall be in skilled areas of technical, academic, communications, 

  interpersonal/personal growth, safety/first aid and inservice training. 

 3. Credit can be earned in college courses, including on-line courses, business courses,  

  adult education, seminars, conferences, correspondence course, trade schools and  

  CSEA leadership trainings. 

 4. Only one correspondence course shall be approved toward the 15 units  

  requirement. 

 5. Courses must be completed to receive credit, with a passing grade of a  

  “C” or better. 

 

E. The point system will be used to determine if a unit member will receive an award/bonus.  To 

 qualify for Professional Growth Incentive Award, the unit member must complete 15 units.  

 This will be set in terms of college units or its equivalent.  In the case of non-unit studies, hours 

 will be used to determine units.  The standard of 15 hours of participation will equal one unit. 

 

F. Courses may be counted one time only for professional growth credit.  Courses in  

 progress at the end of one fiscal year may be carried over to another year. 

Kbock
Highlight



 

38 

 

 

G. Unit members completing a professional growth plan shall receive a one time 

award/bonus of 5% of their annual salary, during the declaration year.  Limited to 4 times 

maximum. 

 

H. A Declaration of Intent to complete the units must be submitted to the District by  

 February 15th, prior to the year in which an award/bonus will be paid. 

  

I. No more than one Professional Growth Incentive Award will be granted in any 

 year. 

 

J. In order to obtain credit for approved completed coursework unit members need to 

 submit (1) one of the following, by September 1st of the declaration year: 

 1. Official transcripts 

 2. Certificate verifying the number of hours completed, including dates of attendance. 

  

K. Unit members interested in taking advantage of the program must obtain prior  

 approval from their supervisor and the Superintendent/Designee. 

 

L. If a unit member voluntarily terminates employment with the District for any  

 reason and is subsequently reemployed, he or she shall not be entitled to  

professional Growth Incentive Awards that total more than a maximum of four awards during 

all years of employment. 

 

M. Unit members returned to employment following a layoff or return employment pursuant to 

Education Code sections 45192 or 45195 (rehire following disability) shall be entitled 

to reinstatement of all earned professional growth increments. 

 

N. Professional growth activities occurring prior to an employee’s beginning 

employment/reemployment with the District shall not be credited in this program. 

 

O. Effective 2021-2022 school year, unit members will be recognized for the college degree 

completion with an ongoing annual stipend of $250 Associate’s Degree, increasing to $500 for 

a Bachelor’s Degree and increased to $1,000 for a Master’s Degree.  Beginning in 2022, 

annually “Declaration of Intent to Complete Units” must be submitted to district by February 

15th. Classified staff with current degrees must submit official transcripts by September 1st of 

the declaration year.  

 

 

 



 

39 

 

ARTICLE XIX 

FRINGE BENEFITS 

 

The District and CSEA agree to continue negotiating to explore alternative health care 

providers. 

A. 1. Effective January 1, 2023 each full-time employee may elect one (1) of the 

 following health plan alternatives: 

One Party 

Plans WHA - High WHA - Low Sutter-High  Sutter - Low Kaiser- High  Kaiser - Mid Kaiser – Low  

Medical 786.70 593.41 816.50 751.90 825.18 756.98 534.08 

Dental/Ortho 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 

Vision 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 

$30,000 Life 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 

Totals 927.68 734.39 957.48 892.88 966.16 897.96 675.06 

District Allowance 900.00 900.00 900.00 90.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 

Employee Share 27.68 0.00 57.48 0.00 66.16 0.00 0.00 

 

Two Party 

Plans WHA - High WHA - Low Sutter-High  Sutter - Low Kaiser- High  Kaiser - Mid Kaiser – Low  

Medical 1573.41 1186.83 1632.90 1503.80 1650.36 1513.96 1068.15 

Dental/Ortho 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 

Vision 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 

$30,000 Life 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 

Totals 1714.39 1327.81 1773.88 1644.78 1791.34 1654.94 1209.13 

District Allowance 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 

Employee Share 814.39 427.81 873.88 744.78 891.34 754.94 309.13 

 

Family 

Plans WHA - High WHA - Low Sutter-High  Sutter - Low Kaiser- High  Kaiser - Mid Kaiser – Low  

Medical 2226.37 1679.36 2310.90 2128.20 2335.25 2142.25 1511.43 

Dental/Ortho 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 116.63 

Vision 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 

$30,000 Life 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 

Totals 2367.35 1820.34 2451.88 2269.18 2476.23 2283.23 1652.41 

District Allowance 90.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 

Employee Share 1467.35 920.34 1551.88 1369.18 1576.23 1383.23 752.41 

  

2. Employees shall pay any premium amount above the District Allowance. 

 

B. 1. The parties agree to continue the 125 Plan, at no cost to the District or 

  employees. 

Kbock
Highlight



 

40 

 

 2. Cash-in-lieu of benefits ($150/month) is only available to classified employees hired  

  prior to June 30, 2006. 

 

 3. Classified employees receiving cash-in-lieu of benefits, who return to district 

  health care after June 30, 2006 will no longer be entitled to return to the  

  cash-in-lieu status. 

 

D. Effective December 1, 1988: 

 

 1. Full time employees who work eight (8) hours per day and at least ten (10) 

  months per year are eligible for full fringe benefit coverage. 

 

 2. Part time employees working four (4) hours or more per day and at least ten 

  (10) months per year are eligible for pro-rated fringe benefit coverage based  

  on an eight (8) hour work day. 

 

 3. Employees hired prior to the above date (12/1/88) and eligible for pro-rated 

  coverage based on a six (6) hour day, shall now have pro-rated coverage based  

  on an eight (8) hour day.  However, this shall be for purposes of increasing and  

  not decreasing their pro-rated coverage. 

 

 4. Benefits will continue for employees working less than four (4) hours per day 

  who were granted medical coverage prior to 10/1/84 and dental coverage prior 

  to 11/18/85. 

 

D. The District will provide paid medical insurance for employee only, upon retirement, 

 after twenty (20) consecutive years of service to the District from age sixty (60) until 

 age sixty-five (65).  To be eligible, an employee must be no less than 60 years of 

 age prior to the date of retirement. 

 

E. The District agrees to pay employee’s portion of State Disability Insurance on all 

 earnings. 

 

F. Both parties shall follow the rules and regulations of the carriers/administrators. 

 

G. Pursuant to COBRA, the District will permit eligible employees and their dependents 

 to remain in the District-offered health care plan at their own expense.  Arrangements 

 for advance payment shall be made with the Business Office. 

 

 





































 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.484 
Board Consideration of Approval of 
Agreement Between the Galt Joint Union 
Elementary School District and 
Unrepresented Employees Regarding 
Compensation  
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  

 
 
The District employs 40 unrepresented staff members such as administrators, supervisors, 
coordinators, counselors, and confidential staff.  
 
The recommended compensation increases for 2023-24 are:  

• 3.5% on-going salary increase 
• 1% increase in longevity 
• 1% one-time bonus 
• Associate’s Degree increase- $250 to $500 
• Bachelor’s Degree increase- $500 to $1000 
• Master’s Degree increase- $1000 to $2000 
• Doctorate increase- $2200 to $3000 

 
Based on a salary parity study of comparable districts, the following changes are recommended:  

• Classified Confidential- Administrative Assistants move from Range K to L. 
• Executive Assistant to Superintendent moves from Classified Confidential Salary Schedule 

to Supervisory Salary Schedule Range K.  
 
Fiscal impact: $265,044 ongoing increase 

$53,003 one-time payment 
 
Attachments: 

• Updated Salary Schedules 
• County Public Disclosure (included in previous action item #232.483) 

 
 
 Board approval is recommended. 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 























 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.485 
Board Consideration of Approval of 2023-24 
Title 1 Notification Authorization of 
Schoolwide Program Waiver for Fairsite 
Elementary 
 

Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar Action Item: XX 
  Information Item:  
 
 

Title I, Part A federal funds help to meet the educational needs of students in California schools.  
 
Funds are used to support effective, evidence-based educational strategies that close the 
achievement gap and enable the students to meet the state's challenging academic standards.  
 
Title I-funded schools are either Targeted Assistance Schools (TAS) or Schoolwide Program (SWP) 
schools. 
 
The purpose of a SWP is to improve academic achievement throughout a school so that all students, 
particularly the lowest-achieving students, demonstrate proficiency related to the challenging State 
academic standards (Title 34, Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] Part 200, Section 200.25[a][1]). The 
improved achievement results from improving the entire educational program of the school (34 CFR 
200.25[a][2]). 
 
When the low-income percent of a school that has been operating as a schoolwide program (SWP) 
school drops below the 40 percent threshold, the school must apply for a SWP waiver to obtain 
approval from the local governing board to continue to operate as a Schoolwide program school. In 
addition, the school must re-submit the SWP plan for approval before June 30, 2024.  
            

• The school has been operating as a Schoolwide Program school since August 17, 2023. 
• The low-income percent of the school has dropped below the 40 percent threshold. 
• The District has determined that the best way to serve the student population is for the 

school to continue to operate as a schoolwide program. 
 
 
Board Approval is Recommended. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date: March 20, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.486 
First Reading of the Following Board Policies 
(BP) and Administrative Regulations (AR) 

1. BP/AR 1250 Visitors/Outsiders 
2. BP 1313 Civility 
3. BP/AR 3515.2 Disruptions 
4. BP/AR 4119.25 Political Activities Of 

Employees 
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item:  
  First Reading:           XX 
 
 
 

The following Board Policies (BP) and Administrative Regulations (AR) are presented for a first 
reading to reflect the most current language CSBA suggests. 
 

1. BP/AR 1250 Visitors/Outsiders 
2. BP 1313 Civility 
3. BP/AR 3515.2 Disruptions 
4. BP/AR 4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



Policy 1250: Visitors/OutsidersPolicy 1250: Visitors/Outsiders Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/27/2012

The Governing Board believes that it is important for parents/guardians and community members to take an active
interest in the issues affecting district schools and students.  Therefore, the Board encourages interested
parents/guardians and community members to visit the schools and participate in the educational program.

To ensure the safety of students and staff and minimize interruption of the instructional program, the Superintendent
or designee shall establish procedures which facilitate visits during regular school days.  Visits during school hours
should be arranged with the principal or designee.  When a visit involves a conference with a teacher or the principal,
an appointment should be scheduled during noninstructional time.

OPTION 1:  Any person who is not a student or staff member shall register immediately upon entering any school
building or grounds when school is in session.
END OF OPTION 1 

OPTION 2:  All outsiders, as defined in law and administrative regulation, shall register immediately upon entering
any school building or grounds when school is in session.  (Penal Code 627.2)
END OF OPTION 2 

The principal or designee may provide a visible means of identification for all individuals who are not students or
staff members while on school premises.

No electronic listening or recording device may be used by any person in a classroom without the teacher's and
principal's permission.  (Education Code 51512)

The Board encourages all individuals to assist in maintaining a safe and secure school environment by behaving in an
orderly manner while on school grounds and by utilizing the district's complaint processes if they have concerns with
any district program or employee.  In accordance with Penal Code 626.7, the principal or designee may request that
any individual who is causing a disruption, including exhibiting volatile, hostile, aggressive, or offensive behavior,
immediately leave school grounds.

Presence of Sex Offender on Campus

Any person who is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290, including a parent/guardian of
a district student, shall request written permission from the principal before entering the school campus or grounds. 
As necessary, the principal shall consult with local law enforcement authorities before allowing the presence of any
such person at school or other school activity. The principal also shall report to the Superintendent or designee
anytime he/she gives such written permission.

The principal shall indicate on the written permission the date(s) and times for which permission has been granted.
(Penal Code 626.81)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 1250: Visitors/OutsidersPolicy 1250: Visitors/Outsiders Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/27/2012 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/27/2012

The Governing Board believes that it is important for parents/guardians and community members to take an active
interest in the issues affecting district schools and students. Therefore, the Board encourages interested
parents/guardians and community members to visit the schools and participate in the educational program.

To ensure the safety of students and staff and minimize interruption of the instructional program, the Superintendent
or designee shall establish procedures which facilitate visits during regular school days. Visits during school hours
should be arranged with the principal or designee. When a visit involves a conference with a teacher or the principal,
an appointment should be scheduled during noninstructional time.

All outsiders, as defined in law and administrative regulation, shall register immediately upon entering any school
building or grounds when school is in session. (Penal Code 627.2)

The principal or designee may provide a visible means of identification for all individuals who are not students or
staff members while on school premises.

No electronic listening or recording device may be used by any person in a classroom without the teacher's and
principal's permission. (Education Code 51512)

The Board encourages all individuals to assist in maintaining a safe and secure school environment by behaving in an
orderly manner while on school grounds and by utilizing the district's complaint processes if they have concerns with
any district program or employee. In accordance with Penal Code 626.7, the principal or designee may request that
any individual who is causing a disruption, including exhibiting volatile, hostile, aggressive, or offensive behavior,
immediately leave school grounds.

Presence of Sex Offender on Campus

Any person who is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290, including a parent/guardian of
a district student, shall request written permission from the principal before entering the school campus or grounds.
As necessary, the principal shall consult with local law enforcement authorities before allowing the presence of any
such person at school or other school activity. The principal also shall report to the Superintendent or designee
anytime he/she gives such written permission.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Regulation 1250: Visitors/OutsidersRegulation 1250: Visitors/Outsiders Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Superintendent or designee shall post at every entrance to each school and school grounds a notice describing
registration requirements, school hours or hours during which registration is required, the registration location, the
route to take to that location, and the penalties for violation of registration requirements.  (Education Code 32211;
Penal Code 627.6)

Unless otherwise directed by the principal or designee, a staff member shall accompany visitors/outsiders while they
are on school grounds.

Outsider Registration

Outsiders shall register upon entering school premises during school hours.  Any person other than the following is
considered an outsider:  (Evidence Code 1070; Penal Code 627.1, 627.2)

1. A student of the school, unless currently under suspension
 

2. A parent/guardian of a student of the school
 

3. A Governing Board member or district employee
 

4. A public employee whose employment requires being on school grounds, or any person who is on school
grounds at the school's request
 

5. A representative of a school employee organization who is engaged in activities related to the representation
of school employees
 

6. An elected public official
 

7. A publisher, editor, reporter, or other person connected with or employed by a newspaper, magazine, other
periodical publication, press association or wire service, radio station, or television station

Registration Procedure

In order to register, an outsider shall, upon request, furnish the principal or designee with the following information: 
(Penal Code 627.3)

1. His/her name, address, and occupation
 

2. His/her age, if less than 21
 

3. His/her purpose for entering school grounds
 

4. Proof of identity
 

5. Other information consistent with the provisions of law

Principal's Registration Authority

The principal or designee may refuse to register any outsider if he/she reasonably concludes that the individual's
presence or acts would disrupt the school, students, or employees; would result in damage to property; or would
result in the distribution or use of a controlled substance.  The principal or designee or school security officer may
revoke any outsider's registration if he/she has a reasonable basis for concluding that the individual's presence on
school grounds would interfere or is interfering with the peaceful conduct of school activities or would disrupt or is
disrupting the school, students, or staff.  (Penal Code 627.4)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



When an outsider fails to register, or when the principal or designee denies or revokes an outsider's registration
privileges, the principal or designee may request that the individual promptly leave school grounds. 
When an outsider is directed to leave, the principal or designee shall inform him/her that if he/she reenters the
school within seven days he/she may be guilty of a misdemeanor subject to a fine and/or imprisonment.  (Penal Code
627.7)

Appeal Procedure

Any person who is denied registration or whose registration is revoked may appeal to the Superintendent or principal
by submitting, within five days after the person's departure from school, a written request for a hearing. This request
must state why he/she believes the denial or revocation was improper and must provide an address to which the
hearing notice may be sent. Upon receipt of the request for a hearing, the Superintendent or principal shall promptly
mail a notice of the hearing to the person requesting it.  A hearing before the Superintendent or principal shall be
held within seven days after receipt of the request.  (Penal Code 627.5)



Regulation 1250: Visitors/OutsidersRegulation 1250: Visitors/Outsiders Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

The Superintendent or designee shall post at every entrance to each school and school grounds a notice setting forth
visitor registration requirements, hours during which registration is required, the registration location, the route to
take to that location, and the penalties for violation of registration requirements. (Penal Code 627.6)

Unless otherwise directed by the principal or designee, a staff member shall accompany visitors while they are on
school grounds.

Registration Procedure

In order to register, visitors shall, upon request, furnish the principal or designee with the following information:
(Penal Code 627.3)

1. Name, address and occupation
 

2. Age, if less than 21
 

3. Purpose for entering school grounds
 

4. Proof of identity
 

5. Other information consistent with the provisions of law

Denial of Registration

1. The principal or designee may refuse to register any visitor if he/she reasonably concludes that the visitor's
presence or acts would disrupt the school, students, or employees; would result in damage to property; or
would result in the distribution or use of a controlled substance. The principal or designee or school security
officer may revoke an visitor's registration if he/she has a reasonable basis for concluding that the visitor 's
presence on school grounds would interfere or is interfering with the peaceful conduct of school activities or
would disrupt or is disrupting the school, students or staff.
 

2. The principal or designee may request that a visitor who has failed to register, or whose registration privileges
have been denied or revoked, promptly leave school grounds. When a visitor is directed to leave, the principal
or designee shall inform the visitor that if he/she reenters the school within seven days he/she will be guilty of
a misdemeanor subject to a fine and/or imprisonment.

Appeal Procedure

Any person who is denied registration or whose registration is revoked may appeal to the Superintendent or principal
by submitting, within five days after the person's departure from school, a written request for a hearing. This request
must state why he/she believes the denial or revocation was improper and must provide an address to which the
hearing notice may be sent. Upon receipt of the request for a hearing, the Superintendent or principal shall promptly
mail a notice of the hearing to the person requesting it. A hearing before the Superintendent or principal shall be held
within seven days after receipt of the request. (Penal Code 627.5)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 1313: CivilityPolicy 1313: Civility Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

The Governing Board recognizes the impact that civility has on the effective operation of the district, including its
role in creating a safe and positive school climate and enabling a focus on student well-being, learning, and
achievement.  The Board believes that each person should be treated with dignity and respect in their interactions
within the school community.

The Board understands that the First Amendment provides strong protection for speech.  However, the Board
expects that all speech and expression will comport with norms of civil behavior on district grounds, in district
facilities, during district activities or events, and in the use of district electronic/digital systems and platforms.

Civil behavior is polite, courteous, and reasonable behavior which is respectful to others and includes integrity,
honesty, acceptance, timeliness, dependability, observance of laws and rules, and effective communication.

The Board and district staff shall model civil behavior as an example of behavior that is expected throughout the
district.  Practices that promote civil behavior include actively listening, giving full attention to the speaker, and
refraining from interruptions; welcoming and encouraging participation, input, and feedback through stakeholder
engagement; promptly responding to concerns; and embracing varying and diverse viewpoints.  Such practices may
be incorporated into governance standards adopted by the Board or Superintendent and/or professional standards
or codes of conduct for employees as specified in district policies and regulations.

Students, staff, parents/guardians, and community members should be educated in the recognition, development,
and demonstration of civil behavior. The Superintendent or designee may incorporate related concepts in the
curriculum, provide staff development activities, and/or communicate this policy to the school community.

Students, staff, parents/guardians, and community members shall not communicate or behave in a manner that
causes disruption; hinders the orderly conduct of district operations, the educational program, or any other district
program or activity; or creates an unsafe learning or working environment. The Superintendent or designee may
respond to disruptive, violent, or threatening behavior in accordance with law and as specified in BP/AR 3515.2 -
Disruptions.

Behavior by students or staff that is discriminatory, harassing, or intimidating, including sexual harassment, bullying,
and/or hate violence, or behavior that is in any other way unlawful, is prohibited and is subject to discipline in
accordance with law and as specified in district policy and regulations.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 3515.2: DisruptionsPolicy 3515.2: Disruptions Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe and orderly environment for students, staff, and others on
district property or while engaged in school activities.

The Superintendent or designee shall remove any individual who, by his/her presence or action, disrupts or threatens
to disrupt normal operations at a school campus or any other district facility, threatens the health or safety of anyone
on district property, or causes or threatens to cause damage to district property or to any property on school
grounds.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a plan describing staff responsibilities and actions to be taken when
an individual is causing or threatening to cause a disruption. The plan shall address, as appropriate, visitor registration
procedures; campus security measures; evacuation procedures; lock-down procedures; possible responses to an
active shooter situation; communications within the school and with parents/guardians, law enforcement, and the
media in the event of an emergency; and crisis counseling or other assistance for students and staff after a
disruption. In developing such a plan, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with law enforcement to create
guidelines for law enforcement support and intervention when necessary.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to school staff on how to identify and respond to actions or
situations that may constitute a disruption.

Any employee who believes that a disruption may occur shall immediately contact the principal. The principal or
designee shall notify law enforcement in accordance with Education Code 48902 and 20 USC 7961 and in other
situations, as appropriate.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 3515.2: DisruptionsPolicy 3515.2: Disruptions Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

In order to help maintain an educational environment that provides for student safety, the Governing Board is
committed to keeping the schools free from disruptions and to keeping unauthorized persons from entering school
grounds. The Superintendent or designee shall provide for the prompt removal of any individual from school grounds
who disrupts or threatens to disrupt normal school operations, threatens the health and safety of students or staff, or
threatens to cause property damage in accordance with law, Board policy, or administrative regulation.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a plan describing actions to be taken, including staff responsibilities,
when an individual is causing a disruption. In developing such a plan, the Superintendent or designee shall consult
with law enforcement to create guidelines for law enforcement support and intervention in the event of a disruption.

School staff shall be trained to recognize when an individual has committed acts that constitute a disruption in
violation of Board policy or administrative regulation. Staff who believe that a disruption may occur shall immediately
contact the principal.

Gun Free School Zone

Possession of unauthorized firearms, weapons, or other dangerous instruments is prohibited within 1,000 feet of
school grounds without the written permission of school authorities. (Penal Code 626.9, 626.10)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Regulation 3515.2: DisruptionsRegulation 3515.2: Disruptions Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/06/2017

The principal or designee may direct any person, except a student, school employee, or other person required by
his/her employment to be on school grounds, to leave school grounds or school activity if:

1. The principal or designee has reasonable basis for concluding that the person is committing or has entered the
campus with the purpose of committing an act which is likely to interfere with the peaceful conduct, discipline,
good order, or administration of the school or a school activity, or with the intent of inflicting damage to any
person or property.  (Education Code 44810, 44811; Penal Code 626.7)
 

2. The person fights or challenges another person to a fight, willfully disturbs another person by loud and
unreasonable noise, or uses offensive language which could provoke a violent reaction.  (Penal Code 415.5)
 

3. The person, without lawful business for being present, loiters around a school or reenters a school within 72
hours after he/she was asked to leave.  (Penal Code 653b)

4. The person is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290 and does not have a lawful
purpose and written permission from the principal or designee to be on school grounds.  (Penal Code 626.81)
 

5. The person is a specified drug offender, as defined in Penal Code 626.85, and does not have written
permission from the principal or designee to be on school grounds.  However, such specified drug offender
may be on school grounds during any school activity if he/she is a student or the parent/guardian of a student
attending the school.  (Penal Code 626.85)

6. The person willfully or knowingly creates a disruption with the intent to threaten the immediate physical safety
of students, staff, or others while attending, arriving at, or leaving school.  (Penal Code 626.8)
 

7. The person has otherwise established a continued pattern of unauthorized entry on school grounds.  (Penal
Code 626.8)

The principal or designee shall allow a parent/guardian who was previously directed to leave school grounds to
reenter for the purpose of retrieving his/her child for disciplinary reasons, medical attention, or family emergencies,
or with the principal or designee's prior written permission.  (Penal Code 626.7, 626.85)

When directing any person to leave school premises, the principal or designee shall inform the person that he/she
may be guilty of a crime if he/she: (Education Code 32211; Penal Code 626.7, 626.8, 636.85)

1. Fails to leave or remains after being directed to leave
 

2. Returns to the campus without following the school's posted registration requirements
 

3. Returns within seven days after being directed to leave

Whenever an individual is causing or threatening to cause a disruption at any district facility other than a school
campus, the Superintendent or designee may direct that individual to leave the facility consistent with this regulation
and the accompanying Board policy.

Appeal Procedure

Any person who is asked to leave a school building or grounds may appeal to the Superintendent or designee. This
appeal shall be made no later than the second school day after the person has departed from the school building or
grounds. After reviewing the matter with the principal or designee and the person making the appeal, the
Superintendent or designee shall render his/her decision within 24 hours after the appeal is made, and this decision
shall be binding.  (Education Code 32211)

The decision of the Superintendent or designee may be appealed to the Governing Board.  Such an appeal shall be
made no later than the second school day after the Superintendent or designee has rendered his/her decision. The
Board shall consider and decide the appeal at its next scheduled regular or adjourned regular public meeting. The
Board's decision shall be final.  (Education Code 32211)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



In any circumstance where a person has been directed to leave a school building or ground where the
Superintendent's or Board's office is situated, he/she may nevertheless enter the school building or ground solely for
the purpose of making the appeal.  (Education Code 32211)



Regulation 3515.2: DisruptionsRegulation 3515.2: Disruptions Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/06/2017 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 12/06/2017

The principal or designee may direct any person, except a student, school employee, or other person required by
his/her employment to be on school grounds, to leave school grounds or school activity if:

1. The principal or designee has reasonable basis for concluding that the person is committing or has entered the
campus with the purpose of committing an act which is likely to interfere with the peaceful conduct, discipline,
good order, or administration of the school or a school activity, or with the intent of inflicting damage to any
person or property. (Education Code 44810, 44811; Penal Code 626.7)
 

2. The person fights or challenges another person to a fight, willfully disturbs another person by loud and
unreasonable noise, or uses offensive language which could provoke a violent reaction. (Penal Code 415.5)
 

3. The person loiters around a school without lawful business for being present or reenters a school within 72
hours after he/she was asked to leave. (Penal Code 653b)
 

4. The person is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290 and does not have a lawful
purpose and written permission from the principal or designee to be on school grounds. (Penal Code 626.81)
 

5. The person is a specified drug offender as defined in Penal Code 626.85 and does not have written permission
from the principal or designee to be on school grounds. However, such specified drug offender may be on
school grounds during any school activity if he/she is a student or the parent/guardian of a student attending
the school. (Penal Code 626.85)
 

6. The person willfully or knowingly creates a disruption with the intent to threaten the immediate physical safety
of any student in grades K-8 while attending, arriving at, or leaving school. (Penal Code 626.8)
 

7. The person has otherwise established a continued pattern of unauthorized entry on school grounds. (Penal
Code 626.8)

The principal or designee shall allow a parent/guardian who was previously directed to leave school grounds to
reenter for the purpose of retrieving his/her child for disciplinary reasons, medical attention, or family emergencies,
or with the principal or designee's prior written permission. (Penal Code 626.7, 626.85)

When directing any person to leave school premises, the principal or designee shall inform the person that he/she
may be guilty of a crime if he/she:

1. Fails to leave or remains after being directed to leave (Penal Code 626.7, 626.8, 626.85)
 

2. Returns to the campus without following the school's posted registration requirements (Penal Code 626.7)
 

3. Returns within seven days after being directed to leave (Penal Code 626.8, 626.85)

Appeal Procedure

Any person who is asked to leave a school building or grounds may appeal to the Superintendent or designee. This
appeal shall be made no later than the second school day after the person has departed from the school building or
grounds. After reviewing the matter with the principal or designee and the person making the appeal, the
Superintendent or designee shall render his/her decision within 24 hours after the appeal is made, and this decision
shall be binding. (Education Code 32211)

The decision of the Superintendent or designee may be appealed to the Governing Board. Such an appeal shall be
made no later than the second school day after the Superintendent or designee has rendered his/her decision. The
Board shall consider and decide the appeal at its next scheduled regular or adjourned regular public meeting. The
Board's decision shall be final. (Education Code 32211)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 4119.25: Political Activities Of EmployeesPolicy 4119.25: Political Activities Of Employees Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of political activity, voting, and civic engagement, and respects the
right of district employees to engage in political discussions and activities as individuals on their own time and at
their own expense. When engaging in such activities, employees shall make it clear that they are acting on their own
behalf and not as representatives of the district.

District employees, as members of the community, may use school facilities for meetings, including political
activities, as permitted under the Civic Center Act and district policy.

Employees shall refrain from prohibited political activities identified in law, Board policy, and administrative
regulations. Employees who engage in these activities shall be subject to disciplinary action and/or criminal penalties.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 4119.25: Political Activities Of EmployeesPolicy 4119.25: Political Activities Of Employees Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board respects the right of school employees to engage in political discussions and activities on their
own time and at their own expense. On such occasions, employees shall make it clear that they are acting as
individuals and not as representatives of the district.

(cf. 1160 - Political Processes)

Like other community members, employees may use school facilities for meetings under the Civic Center Act.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

Employees shall refrain from prohibited activities identified in law and administrative regulations. Employees who
engage in these activities shall be subject to disciplinary action and/or criminal penalties.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Regulation 4119.25: Political Activities Of EmployeesRegulation 4119.25: Political Activities Of Employees Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

No employee shall be prohibited from soliciting or receiving political funds or contributions to promote the support
or defeat of a ballot measure during nonworking time, including before and after school, the lunch period, or other
scheduled work intermittency during the school day.  (Education Code 7056)

District employees shall not:

1. Use district funds, services, supplies, equipment, work hours, or other public resources to urge the support or
defeat of any ballot measure or candidate, including any candidate for election to the Governing Board
 (Education Code 7054, 7056; Government Code 8314)
 

2. Use the district's seal in any campaign literature or mass mailing with the intent to deceive voters, including,
but not limited to, the use of a reproduction or facsimile of the seal in a manner that creates a misleading,
erroneous, or false impression that the document is authorized by the Board, a Board member, or the district
 (Elections Code 18304)
 

3. During working hours, solicit or receive any political funds or contributions to promote the passage or defeat
of a ballot measure that would affect the rate of pay, hours of work, retirement, civil service or other working
conditions  (Education Code 7056)

4. During working hours, solicit or receive any political funds or contributions to promote the passage or defeat
of other types of ballot measures
 

5. Use district equipment for the preparation or reproduction of political campaign materials
 

6. Post or distribute political campaign materials in classrooms, through distance learning platforms, or on district
property
 

7. Disseminate political campaign materials through the district's mail service, e-mail, or staff mailboxes
 

8. Use students to write, address, or distribute political campaign materials
 

9. Present viewpoints on particular candidates or ballot measures in the classroom without giving equal time to
the presentation of all perspectives

10. Wear buttons, hats, or other articles of clothing that express political opinions on ballot measures or
candidates during instructional time

Political Activities of Employee Organizations

Employee organizations shall not use district funds, services, supplies, or equipment, such as staff mailboxes or the
district mail system, to urge the support or defeat of any ballot measure or candidate, including any candidate for
election to the Board.  (Education Code 7054)

No employee organization or its officers, agents, or representatives shall be prohibited from soliciting or receiving
political funds or contributions to promote the passage or defeat of a ballot measure during nonworking time,
including before and after school, the lunch period, or other scheduled work intermittency during the school day.
 (Education Code 7056)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Regulation 4119.25: Political Activities Of EmployeesRegulation 4119.25: Political Activities Of Employees Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

District employees shall not:

1. Use district funds, services, supplies or equipment to urge the passage or defeat of any ballot measure or
candidate, including any candidate for election to the Governing Board (Education Code 7054)

(cf. 1160 - Political Processes)

2. During working hours and on district property, solicit or receive any political funds or contributions to promote the
passage or defeat of a ballot measure that would affect the rate of pay, hours of work, retirement, civil service or
other working conditions (Education Code 7056)

3. During working hours and on district property, solicit or receive any political funds or contributions to promote the
passage or defeat of other types of ballot measures

4. Use district time to urge the passage or defeat of any ballot measure or candidate

5. Use district equipment for the preparation or reproduction of political campaign materials, even if the district is
reimbursed

(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

6. Post or distribute political campaign materials on district property

7. Disseminate political campaign materials through the district's mail service, e-mail or staff mailboxes

(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)

8. Use students to write, address or distribute political campaign materials

9. Present viewpoints on particular candidates or ballot measures in the classroom without giving equal time to the
presentation of opposing views

(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues)

10. Wear buttons or articles of clothing that express political opinions on ballot measures or candidates during
instructional time

However, teachers shall not be prohibited from wearing political buttons during noninstructional time, such as Back-
to-School Night.

Nothing in Board policy or administrative regulation shall be construed to prevent employees from soliciting or
receiving funds or contributions for political purposes during nonworking time, including before and after school, the
lunch period or other scheduled work intermittency during the school day. (Education Code 7056)

Employee Organizations

Employee organizations may use district mailboxes and other means to communicate with employees, subject to
reasonable regulation. Employee organizations may have access at reasonable times to areas in which employees
work; may use institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and other means of communication and may use district
facilities at reasonable times for the purpose of meetings. (Government Code 3543.1)

However, employee organizations shall not use district funds, services, supplies or equipment, such as the district
mail system, to urge the passage or defeat of any ballot measure or candidate, including any candidate for election to
the Board (Education Code 7054)

(cf. 4140/4240 - Bargaining Units)

Access to district communication channels shall be limited in cases where such access would be disruptive to district
operations.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



In the event of a concerted action or work stoppage, political activities by employee organizations and individual
employees shall be restricted to peaceful informational picketing and other activities allowed by law.

(cf. 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage)


	Agenda
	Board Meeting Protocol
	Reports
	LCAP Goal 1
	LCAP Goal 2
	Other Reports
	232.478 Consent Calendar
	232.479 CC Item Removed
	232.480 Second Interim Budget Report
	232.481 Transportation Plan
	232.482 Res 15 Consolidation of Election for Board Candidates
	232.483 CSEA TA
	232.484 Unrepresented TA
	232.485 Title 1 Notification Auth Schoolwide Program Waiver for Fairsite
	232.486 Board Policies



